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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The Consolidated Financial Statements of SBI Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the
“Group”) were prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in Japan (“JGAAP”) and were presented by reference to the
“Rules Governing Term, Form and Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements” (Finance Ministerial Order the 28th, 1976, which is hereinafter
referred to as the “Consolidated Financial Statements Rule”). The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain investments which are stated at fair value, the details of which are listed below.
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Japanese Yen (“Yen” or “¥”).

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Accounting policies
(1) Scope of consolidation and application of equity method
(a) Under the control or influence concept, those companies in which the Group, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control are consolidated,
and those companies over which the Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for using the equity method.
(b) All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit or loss resulting from
intercompany transactions is eliminated.
(c) Basis for exclusion from scope of consolidation
(i) Small size entities of which total assets, sales, and proportional share of net income and retained earnings are considered to be immaterial are
excluded from consolidation. Investments in partnerships which are classified as subsidiaries under Practical Issues Task Force (“PITF”) No.
20—“Practical Solution on Application of Control,” issued on 8 September 2006, are excluded from consolidation as the effect of consolidation
may be misleading to investors, in accordance with the item (ii) of Article 5 (1) of the Consolidated Financial Statements Rule.
(ii) Venture capital investments are excluded from the scope of consolidation since the purpose of investments is not for exercising control but to
foster the development of venture capital portfolios.
(d) Basis for not applying equity method
(i) Small size entities of which proportional share of net income and retained earnings are considered to be immaterial individually and collectively
are not accounted for using equity method.
(ii) Venture capital investments are not accounted for using equity method since the purpose of investments is not for exercising significant influence but to foster the development of venture capital portfolios.
(e) Consolidated financial statements are prepared based on the financial statements of each reporting entity and adjustments are made when their
year end dates are different over 3 months.
(2) V
 aluation method of significant assets
(a) Trading instruments
Trading instruments, which are held for the purpose of earning capital gains in the near term, are reported at fair value, with the related unrealized
gains and losses included in income.
(b) Available-for-sale securities (consist of investment securities and operational investment securities other than investments in funds), which are not
classified as trading instruments:
(i) Listed securities
Listed securities are measured at fair value, with fair value gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported as “unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sales securities,” a separate component of net assets. The cost of securities sold is determined based on the moving average cost
method.
(ii) Unlisted securities
Unlisted securities are principally stated at cost less impairment, determined by the moving average cost method. However, unlisted availablefor-sale securities held by certain overseas subsidiaries adopting International Financial Reporting Standards are measured at fair value.
(c) Investments in funds
For the investments in funds other than those included in the scope of consolidation, the Company’s proportionate share in the net assets of the
funds is calculated based on the funds’ annual financial statements or interim financial statements and is presented as “Operational investment
securities” (Current assets) or “Investment securities” (Non-current assets).
(d) Derivative contracts
Derivative contracts are measured at fair value.
(e) Real estate inventories
Real estate inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
(3) Depreciation method of depreciable assets
(a) Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of property and equipment by the Company and its
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consolidated subsidiaries is computed using the declining-balance method over the estimated useful lives of assets, while the straight-line method is
applied to buildings acquired after 1 April 1998. The range of useful lives is principally from 5 to 50 years for buildings, and from 4 to 20 years for
furniture and fixtures. Most overseas consolidated subsidiaries apply the straight-line method. Leased assets are depreciated by the straight-line
method over the lease terms with residual value of zero.
(b) Land
Land is stated at cost less impairment.
(c) Intangible assets
(i) Software used for internal purposes is amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software (5 years).
(ii) Software for sale is amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated saleable period of the software, which is 3 years or less.
Leased assets are depreciated by using straight-line method over the lease terms with residual value of zero.
(4) Recognition and measurement of significant provisions and allowances
(a) Allowance for investment losses
Allowance for investment losses for operational investment securities and investment securities are provided based on the estimated losses of the
investments and the financial condition of the investees.
(b) Allowances for doubtful accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on the Group’s past credit loss experience and an evaluation of the recoverability of the outstanding receivables including notes and accounts receivable-trade, operational loans receivable, loans on margin transactions and other loans receivable.
(c) Provision for bonuses
Bonuses to employees are accrued at the balance sheet date.
(d) Employees’ retirement benefits
The Group recorded liabilities for employees’ retirement benefits based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the balance sheet
date. The liabilities were recognized and measured by assuming all the employees voluntarily retired at the end of the year.
(e) Statutory reserve for securities transactions liabilities/financial products transactions
Pursuant to Article 46–5 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, a statutory reserve is provided against possible losses resulting from execution errors related to securities business transactions. The amount is calculated in accordance with Article 175 of the “Cabinet Office Ordinance
concerning Financial Instruments Business.”
(f) Statutory reserve for price fluctuation
Statutory reserve is provided against possible losses resulting from stock price fluctuations in accordance with Article 115 of the Insurance Business Act.
(5) Translations of significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese Yen using the exchange rates at the balance sheet
date, and the translation adjustment is recognized as foreign exchange gains or losses. The balance sheets of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries
are translated into Japanese Yen using their exchange rate as at the balance sheet date except for net assets, which are translated at the historical
rates. Revenue and expense accounts of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into Japanese Yen using the average exchange rate of
the year. Differences arising from such translations are shown as “Foreign currency translation adjustments,” as a separate component under “Net
assets” except for the portion pertaining to the minority shareholders, which is included under “Minority interests” as a separate component under
“Net assets.”
(6) Recognition for net sales and cost of sales
Net sales and cost of sales
The Group’s net sales primarily consist of a) revenue from operational investment securities, b) fees from funds, c) revenue from real estate business,
d) revenue from securities transactions, and e) revenue from finance lease transactions. The costs of sales principally consist of the cost of operational investment securities, cost of real estate business, and the related provision of allowance for investment losses, if any.
(a) Revenue and cost of operational investment securities
Revenue from operational investment securities includes all of the revenue which is related to or generated by operational investment securities and
securities held by funds. Cost of operational investment securities consists of the carrying value on the sale of operational investment securities and
securities held by funds, and write down of operational investment securities and securities held by funds.
(b) Fees from funds
Fees from funds consist of establishment fees for fund organization, management fees, and success fees from funds which are not within the scope
of consolidation and managed by the Group. Management fees from funds are recognized over the period of the fund management agreement.
Establishment fees and success fees from funds are recognized when those revenue amounts are determined and the services are provided.
(c) Revenue from construction projects
When the total construction revenue, total construction costs and the stage of completion of the contract can be reliably measured at the balance
sheet date, the percentage-of-completion method is applied. If the outcome of a construction contract cannot be reliably estimated at the balance
sheet date, the completed contract method is applied.
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(d) Revenue from securities transactions
Revenue from securities transactions primarily consists of brokerage commissions from securities transactions, fees from underwriting activities and
offering of securities for initial public offerings, and fees for placements and sales of securities.
(e) Revenue from finance lease transactions
Revenue and cost of finance lease transactions are recognized when payments are received.
(f) Financial charges and cost of funding
Financial charges and cost of funding, which consist of interest expense for margin trading transactions and costs from repurchase agreement
transactions, etc. which are related to the investment banking businesses, are recorded as cost of sales. As for certain consolidated subsidiaries,
interest expense other than financial charges is classified as interests related to operating assets (e.g. leases receivable and lease investment assets,
etc.) or to non-operating assets. Interest expense (cost of funding) related to operating assets is classified as cost of sales. During the development
of a project, interest expense related to long term and large scale real estate development is included in the cost of the real estate inventories.
(7) Accounting for significant lease transactions
In March 2007, the Accounting Standards Board of Japan (“ASBJ”) issued ASBJ Statement No. 13, “Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions,”
which revised the previous accounting standard for lease transactions issued in June 1993. The revised accounting standard for lease transactions
was effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 April 2008.
(a) Lessee
ASBJ Statement No. 13 requires that all finance lease transactions be capitalized to recognize leased assets and lease obligations in the balance
sheet. In addition, leases which existed at the transition date and did not transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee continue to be
accounted for as operating lease transactions with certain “as if capitalized” information disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial information.
The Group continues to account for leases which existed at the transition date that did not transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee
as operating lease transactions.
(b) Lessor
ASBJ statement No. 13 requires that all finance leases be recognized as leases receivable, and that all finance leases that are deemed not to transfer ownership of the assets leased to other parties under operating leases be recognized as lease investment assets. For the finance leases which
existed at the transition date and did not transfer ownership of the assets leased to other parties under operating leases, the book value of the
leased assets (after deducting accumulated depreciation) at the transition date is used as the beginning value of the lease investment assets.
The Group adopted ASBJ statement No. 13 on 1 April 2008. Leases receivable and lease investment assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is computed by using the straight-line method over the useful life with residual value of zero.
(8) Accounting for significant hedging transactions
(a) Accounting for hedges
The Group applies deferred hedge accounting when certain criteria are met. Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge foreign currency
exposures in the Group. Receivables, payables and investment securities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the contracted rates if
the forward contracts are qualified for hedge accounting. Interest rate swaps, which are qualified for hedge accounting and met the specific matching criteria, are not remeasured at market value. The differential paid or received under the swap agreements is recognized and included in interest
expense or income.
(b) Hedging instruments and hedged item
(i) Hedging instruments and hedged item
Foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign currency denominated receivables and payables and investment securities.
(ii) Hedging instruments and hedged item
Interest rate swap contracts and interest expense for loans and bonds payable.
(c) Hedging policy
(i) For foreign currency-denominated transactions, the foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge foreign currency exposures in the Group.
(ii) For interest expense on borrowing, interest rate swap contract is utilized to mitigate the volatility of interest rates.
(d) Assessment of effectiveness between the hedging instrument and the hedged item
(i) The Group does not assess hedge effectiveness of foreign exchange forward contracts which qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific
matching criteria.
(ii) The Group assesses hedge effectiveness by comparing the cumulative changes in the fair value of the hedged items and cumulative changes
in the hedging instruments during the period from commencement of hedging to the point of assessing effectiveness, based on changes in both
amount and others. The Group does not assess hedge effectiveness of interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific
matching criteria.
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2. Other significant accounting policies for consolidated financial statements
(1) Business Combination
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
In October 2003, the Business Accounting Council (the “BAC”) issued a Statement of Opinion, “Accounting for Business Combinations” and on 27
December 2005, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 7, “Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” and ASBJ Guidance No. 10, “Revised
Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Business Divestitures.”
The accounting standard for business combinations allowed companies to apply the pooling of interests method of accounting only when certain
specific criteria were met such that the business combination was essentially regarded as a uniting-of-interests. For business combinations that did
not meet the uniting-of-interests criteria, the business combination was considered to be an acquisition and the purchase method of accounting was
required to be adopted. This standard also prescribed the accounting for combinations of entities under common control and for joint ventures.
Goodwill, representing the excess of the Company’s investments in subsidiaries over the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition, is amortized by straight-line method over the estimated useful life of goodwill. Goodwill is amortized over 20 years when its
useful life cannot be reasonably estimated. Negative goodwill, representing the excess of the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition over the Company’s investments in such subsidiaries, is amortized by straight-line method over periods appropriate to the
circumstances of the respective acquisitions. Immaterial goodwill or negative goodwill is charged/credited to consolidated statements of operations
when incurred.
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at a business combination are recorded at its fair value on the acquisition date.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010
In December 2008, the ASBJ issued a revised accounting standard for business combinations, “Accounting Standard for Business Combinations”
(ASBJ Statement No. 21 issued on 26 December 2008), “Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements” (ASBJ Statement No. 22
issued on 26 December 2008), “Partial amendments to Accounting Standard for Research and Development Costs” (ASBJ Statement No. 23 issued
on 26 December 2008), “Revised Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Statement No. 7 (Revised 2008) issued on 26 December
2008), “Revised Accounting Standard for Equity Method of Accounting for Investments” (ASBJ Statement No. 16 (Revised 2008) released on 26
December 2008) and “Revised Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures”
(ASBJ Guidance No. 10 (Revised 2008) issued on 26 December 2008), hereinafter referred to as “revised standards.” The revised standards were
effective for the business combinations transactions undertaken on or after 1 April 2010 and are applied prospectively.
Major accounting changes under the revised accounting standards are as follows:
(i) The previous accounting standard for business combinations allowed companies to apply the pooling of interests method of accounting
when certain specific criteria were met such that the business combination was essentially regarded as a uniting of interests. The revised
standards requires accounting for such business combination by the purchase method and the pooling of interests method of accounting is
no longer allowed.
(ii) The previous accounting standard accounted for the research and development costs to be charged to income as incurred. Under the revised
standards, an in-process research and development (IPR&D) acquired by a business combination is capitalized as an intangible asset.
(iii) Under the previous accounting standard, a bargain purchase (negative goodwill) was capitalized and is amortized within 20 years. Under the
revised standards, a bargain purchase was recognized as profit on the acquisition date.
(iv) Under the previous accounting standard, when a parent obtained control over a subsidiary by a step acquisition, goodwill was measured on
the date the parent obtained control as the difference between (a) the aggregate carrying amount of any previously held equity interests and
the purchase consideration and (b) the net amount of the fair value of assets and the liabilities attributable to the parent on the date the parent
obtains control. Under the revised standards, the acquirer should remeasure its previously held equity interests in the acquiree at its
acquisition-date fair value and recognize any resulting gain or loss. Goodwill is measured at the acquisition date as the difference between (1)
the aggregate of the acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the entity
acquired and the acquisition-date fair value of any previously held equity interests in the entity acquired and (2) the net of the acquisition-date
fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
(2) Accounting for investments in funds
For the investments in funds categorized as subsidiaries but not within the scope of consolidation, the Company’s proportionate share in the net
assets and revenue/expenses of those funds is calculated based on the funds’ annual financial statements or semi-annual financial statements and
is presented as “Investment securities” (Non-current assets) and revenue/expenses, respectively.
For the investments in funds held for operational investment purposes, which are not categorized as subsidiaries, the Company’s proportionate
share in the net assets and revenue/expenses of those funds is calculated based on the funds’ annual financial statements or interim financial statements and is presented as “Operational investment securities” (Current assets) and revenue/expenses, respectively.
For the investment in funds other than those held for operational investment purpose, which are not categorized as subsidiaries, the Company’s
proportionate share in the net assets and revenue/expenses of those funds is calculated based on the funds’ annual financial statements or interim
financial statements and is presented as “Investment securities” (Non-current assets) and non-operating income/expenses, respectively.
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(3) Deferred charges
(a) Stock issuance costs
Stock issuance costs are amortized over 3 years by using straight-line method.
(b) Bond issuance costs
Bond issuance costs are amortized over the bond term by using straight-line method.
(c) Deferred operating costs under Section 113 of the Insurance Business Act
This deferred operating costs can be amortized within 10 years according to Section 113 of the Insurance Business Act of Japan.
(4) Accounting for consumption tax
The amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented without consumption or local consumption taxes.
(5) Cash segregated as deposits
Cash segregated as deposits are mainly client’s trust money and cash deposited as collateral under the regulatory requirement, and stated at cost.
(6) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables including notes and accounts receivable—trade, operational loans receivable and other loans receivable are measured at
historical cost less allowance for doubtful accounts. The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Margin loans receivable are stated at amounts equal to the purchase amounts of the relevant securities, which are collateralized by customers’ securities and customers’ deposits. (See the accounting policy in respect of allowance for doubtful accounts).
(7) Deposits from customers and guarantee deposits received
Deposits received are mainly deposits received from customers and guarantee deposits received which are recognized at cost.
(8) Impairment losses on non-current assets
The Group reviews their non-current assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows
expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group.
The impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.
(9) Asset retirement obligation
Asset retirement obligation is required to be recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The asset retirement obligation should be measured at the present value.
(10) Borrowings
Borrowings are stated at cost, which represent the loans payable and bonds payable outstanding at balance sheet date.
(11) Retail margin trading liabilities
Retail margin trading liabilities are stated at cost.
(12) Stock options
ASBJ Statement No. 8, “Accounting Standard for Stock Options” and related guidance are applicable to stock options granted on and after 1 May
2006. This standard requires companies to recognize compensation expense for employee stock options based on the fair value at the date of grant
and expense over the vesting period as consideration for receiving goods or services.
The standard also requires companies to account for stock options granted to non-employees based on the fair value of either the stock options
granted or the goods or services received. In the consolidated balance sheets, the stock option is presented as a stock acquisition right as a separate component of equity until exercised.
The standard covers equity-settled share-based payment transactions but does not cover cash-settled share-based payment transactions. The
standard allows the stock options granted by unlisted companies to be measured at their intrinsic value if their fair values cannot be reliably estimated. The Group applied this accounting standard for stock options granted after 1 May 2006.
(13) Bonuses to directors and statutory auditors
Bonuses to directors and statutory auditors are accrued at the balance sheet date.
(14) Income taxes
The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the consolidated statements of operations.
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The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.
Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.
A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that these items will either expire before the Group is able to
realize their benefits, or that future deductibility is uncertain.
(15) Per share information
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding for the period.
Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities were exercised or converted into common stock. Diluted
net income per share of common stock assumes full conversion of the outstanding convertible notes and bonds at the beginning of the year (or at
the time of issuance) with an applicable adjustment for related interest expense, net of tax, and full exercise of outstanding warrants.
Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations are dividends attributable to the respective
years including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.
(16) Cash and deposits and short-term investment securities
Cash and cash equivalents stated in the consolidated statements of cash flows are cash and deposits or short-term investment securities that are
readily convertible into cash, and are not exposed to significant risk of changes in value, all of which will mature or become due within three months
from the date of acquisition.

III. CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following new and revised accounting policies are adopted prospectively:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
The Group has adopted “Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligation” (ASBJ Statement No. 18 issued on 31 March 2008) and “Guidance
for Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligation” (ASBJ Guidance No. 21 issued on 31 March 2008). The operating income and ordinary
income were decreased by ¥89 million and the income before income taxes was decreased by ¥591 million for the year ended 31 March 2011 as a
result of the change.
The Group has adopted “Accounting Standard for Business Combinations” (ASBJ Statement No. 21 issued on 26 December 2008), “Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements” (ASBJ Statement No. 22 issued on 26 December 2008), “Partial amendments to Accounting
Standard for Research and Development Costs” (ASBJ Statement No. 23 issued on 26 December 2008), “Revised Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Statement No. 7 (Revised 2008) issued on 26 December 2008), “Revised Accounting Standard for Equity Method of
Accounting for Investments” (ASBJ Statement No. 16 (Revised 2008) released on 26 December 2008) and “Revised Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Guidance No. 10 (Revised 2008) issued on 26
December 2008).

IV. CHANGES IN PRESENTATION
Change in presentation due to expansion of a particular line item or grouping with other items if the corresponding amount exceeds or is below the
benchmark of the associated consolidated financial statements caption. The following change in presentation is applied prospectively:
Consolidated statements of operations:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
“Impairment loss” was included in “Others” line of “Extraordinary expense” for the year ended 31 March 2010 and was separately presented for the
year ended 31 March 2011, as the amount now exceeds 10 percent of total amount of extraordinary expense. “Impairment loss” included in
“Others” line of “Extraordinary expense” for the year ended 31 March 2010 amounted to ¥352 million.

V. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
Execution of Share Exchange Agreement
The Company and its consolidated subsidiary, SBI VeriTrans Co., Ltd. (“SBI VeriTrans”), announced at board meetings held on 24 February 2011,
that their respective boards of directors approved making SBI VeriTrans a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company through a share exchange (the
“Share Exchange”) subject to approval at SBI VeriTrans’ annual meeting of shareholders, and the two companies executed a share exchange agreement. Outline of the transactions is provided on the following page.
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1. Timetable for the Share Exchange
Fiscal year end for the annual shareholders meeting
Annual shareholders meeting to approve share exchange (SBI VeriTrans)
Final trading date (SBI VeriTrans)
Share delisting date (SBI VeriTrans)
Share exchange date (effective date)

31 March 2011
21 June 2011
26 July 2011 (scheduled)
27 July 2011 (scheduled)
1 August 2011 (scheduled)

Note: T
 he Company will implement the Share Exchange through the simplified share exchange arrangement pursuant to Article 796, Paragraph 3 of the Companies Act, and
consequently, approval from its shareholders is not required.

2. Share Exchange Ratio
Company Name

The Company (Wholly Owning Parent Company
After Share Exchange)

SBI VeriTrans
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary After Share Exchange)

1
(Note 2)

4.7
—

Share exchange ratio (Note 1)
Number of shares to be delivered for the Share Exchange

Note 1: Share Exchange Ratio
For every one share of SBI VeriTrans’ common share, 4.7 shares of the Company’s common share will be allocated and delivered (if there are any material changes in the
various conditions that serve as the basis for the calculations, this share exchange ratio may be subject to change through consultations between the two companies). However, no shares will be allocated for the Share Exchange with respect to the shares of SBI VeriTrans already held by the Company.
Note 2: Number of Shares to Be Delivered for the Share Exchange
In the implementation of the Share Exchange, the Company will newly issue and deliver shares of the Company’s common share equal to the total number of shares of SBI
VeriTrans’ common share owned by shareholders of SBI VeriTrans (excluding the Company) stated or recorded in the SBI VeriTrans’ shareholder register immediately prior to
the Share Exchange coming into effect multiplied by 4.7.

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
1. Operational investment securities
As at 31 March 2010 and 2011, operational investment securities included investments in funds and direct investments. Investment in funds
included in operational investment securities consisted of the following:

New Horizon Capital, L.P.
NEW HORIZON FUND, L.P.
SBI & BDJB CHINA FUND, L.P.
New Horizon Capital III, L.P.
SBI BB MEDIA INVESTMENT LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Others
Subtotal (Investments in funds)
Direct investments
Total

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

6,641
10,465
1,253
—
1,375
2,873
22,608
98,967
121,576

17,041
5,231
2,370
2,069
1,217
3,814
31,746
110,135
141,881

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

9,837
7,926
1,403
9,601
28,767

7,505
7,083
1,403
821
16,812

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

29,956

43,463

2. Real estate inventories
Real estate inventories consisted of the following:

Real estate for sale
Real estate for sale in progress
Real estate for development
Beneficial interest in real estate investment trust
Total

3. Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are as follows:

Investment securities

The above investment securities include investments in jointly controlled entities of ¥13,422 million and ¥20,763 million as at 31 March 2010 and
2011, respectively.
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4. Pledged assets
Pledged assets consisted of the following:

Cash and deposits
Notes and accounts receivable—trade
Operational investment securities
Operational loans receivable
Real estate inventories
Others-current assets
Buildings
Land
Investment securities
Total

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

112
587
737
2,864
10,519
3,289
—
—
—
18,109

521
2,126
420
3,206
747
4,593
4,570
5,063
1,937
23,188

10,194
604
300
960
—

9,038
1,291
60
8,269
540

The above assets were pledged as collateral for:
Short-term loans payable
Current portion of long-term loans payable
Current portion of bonds payable
Long-term loans payable
Bonds payable

Included in operational investment securities are ¥1,129 million and ¥1,163 million securities received from customers that were pledged as
collateral for borrowings on margin transactions as at 31 March 2010 and 2011, respectively.

5. Contingent liabilities
(1) Credit guarantees
Guarantees for the debts owed to other financial institutions in the Group’s credit guarantee business are as follows:
2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

542

18,234

Guarantee of bank loans

(2) Other contingent liabilities
AS AT MARCH 31 2010
On 28 July 2008, the Tokyo District Court made a decision to commence civil rehabilitation proceedings on ZEPHYR CO., LTD. (“ZPYR”). On 18
February 2009, ZPYR’s restructuring plan was approved at the creditors’ meeting and confirmed by the court.
As a result, the loan extended to ZPYR by SBI Incubation Co., Ltd. (a consolidated subsidiary of the Company, formerly known as Partners
Investment Co., Ltd. (“PTINV”)), in the aggregate amount of ¥11,366 million as at 31 March 2009 is expected to be collected through the disposal of
real estate held as collateral to creditors. However, if there is an unrecoverable amount after the disposal of the real estate, the proceeds will be
allocated using a percentage determined in the restructuring plan.
PTINV was merged with SBI Incubation Co., Ltd., which was the surviving company, in September 2009.

6. Off-balance sheet items—Fair values of the securities deposited in securities-related businesses
Securities deposited in securities-related businesses represented securities lent to customers under securities lending arrangements.
Fair values of the securities deposited in securities-related businesses are as follows:

Securities loaned on margin transactions
Securities pledged for borrowings on margin transactions
Substitute securities for pledged margin transactions (except those related to customer’s direct deposit)
Substitute securities for guarantee money paid
Securities loaned under loan agreement

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

108,452
49,619
—
80,828
61,557

73,267
71,241
39,118
41,234
60,481
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7. Off-balance sheet items—Fair values of the securities received in securities-related businesses
Securities received in securities-related businesses represented securities borrowed by the Group under securities lending arrangements.
Fair values of the securities received in securities-related businesses are as follows:

Securities pledged for loans on margin transactions
Securities borrowings on margin transactions
Substitute securities for guarantee money received, which were agreed on as collateral for other transactions
Substitute securities for guarantee money received on futures
Substitute securities for margin money received, which were agreed on as collateral for other transactions
Securities borrowed under loan agreement other than margin transactions

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

216,132
41,084
216,883
99
—
68,275

211,846
20,976
250,092
—
100
71,880

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

0
901
125
1,027
2,487
3,514

28
188
4
222
2,479
2,701

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

279,000

297,000

39,865
318,865

50,865
347,865

2010
(millions of Yen)

As at 31 March
2011
(millions of Yen)

157
209
24
391
1,436
1,828

—
212
12
224
1,728
1,953

8. Trading instruments
Trading instruments consisted of the following:

Equity securities
Debt securities
Others
Subtotal
Derivatives
Total

9. Cash segregated as deposits under the regulatory requirement
Cash segregated as deposits are required in respect of the following activities:

Securities brokerage business
Cash segregated as deposits under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act Article No. 43-2-2
for the securities brokerage business
Foreign exchange brokerage business
Cash segregated as deposits under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act Article No. 43-3
for foreign exchange brokerage business
Total

10. Advances received
Advances received included advances for management fees from funds and other advances are as follows:

SBI BB MEDIA INVESTMENT LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
SBI BROADBAND CAPITAL Silent Partnership
Other funds
Total management fees
Other advances received
Total

11. Statutory reserves
As at 31 March 2010 and 2011, a reserve for the financial products transaction liabilities was provided in accordance with Article 46-5 of Japanese
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, and a statutory reserve for price fluctuations was provided in accordance with Article 115 of the Insurance
Business Act.
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12. Credit facilities provided
Several consolidated subsidiaries were engaged in retail loan business, cash advance business for credit cards, and financing corporate reorganization. The credit facilities provided by these subsidiaries in respect of their operations are as follows:

Credit facilities
Utilized
Unused portion

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

12,439
3,461
8,978

5,986
2,928
3,057

It is noted that above credit facilities can be utilized only if certain conditions are met. The purpose for the borrowings and any credit rating
changes of the customers could result in the withdrawal of credit facilities.

13. Lines of credit from financial institutions
To ensure an efficient operating funds procurement, the Group entered into overdraft facilities with 15 and 16 banks as at 31 March 2010 and 2011,
respectively. Unused overdraft facilities at the end of the year are as follows:

Lines of credit
Used balance
Unused portion

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

123,909
43,230
80,679

160,700
84,424
76,276

14. Amount of allowance for investment losses which are directly deducted from investment securities

Investments securities

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

300

300

VII. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
1. Gains (losses) on trading included in net sales consisted of the following:
Year ended 31 March
2011

2010

Equity securities
Debt securities
Others
Total

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

Realized

Unrealized

Total

Realized

Unrealized

Total

3
195
11,120
11,320

35
41
296
373

38
237
11,417
11,693

14
1,307
8,984
10,306

0
(23)
1,628
1,605

14
1,284
10,613
11,911

Above trading gains (losses) included gains (losses) on certain businesses other than securities-related business of ¥81 million and ¥55 million for
the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2011, respectively.

2. Costs of sales consisted of the following:

Cost of sales arising from operational investment securities
Provision of allowance for operational investment securities losses
Financial charges
Cost of sales arising from real estate inventories
Others
Total

2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

7,805
3,073
3,851
3,868
40,539
59,138

7,031
5,957
3,872
5,465
45,208
67,535

Cost of sales arising from operational investment securities includes valuation losses of ¥702 million and ¥1,652 million for the years ended 31
March 2010 and 2011, respectively. Others included financial costs and payrolls related to net sales.
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3. Selling, general and administrative expenses includes the following:
2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

9,970
25
2,140
53
10,412
7,764

10,552
28
2,407
61
11,188
7,889

Payroll and bonuses
Retirement benefit costs
Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts
Provision of bonuses
Outsourcing fees
Amortization of goodwill

4. Selling, general and administrative expenses included research and development costs of ¥447 million and ¥542
million for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2011, respectively.
5. Losses on disposal of non-current assets consisted of the following:
2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

0
0

—
—

2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

55
17
0
26
4
103

45
14
0
128
4
193

Furniture and fixtures
Total

6. Losses on retirement of non-current assets consisted of the following:

Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Other property and equipment
Software
Other intangible assets
Total

7. The Group recorded the following impairment losses for the year ended 31 March 2011:
Business

Category

Items

Brokerage & Investment Banking
Business
Financial Services Business

Assets for on-line securities
operation system
Assets for operation of car related
information site
Assets for healthcare related
business

Buildings, furniture and fixtures,
software and leased assets
Buildings, furniture and fixtures
and software, etc.
Buildings, furniture and fixtures
and software, etc.

Others

Location

Impairment loss
amount
(Millions of yen)

Tokyo

350

Tokyo

150

Tokyo

360

(1) Grouping of assets
The grouping of assets was generally based on the independent lowest cash-generating unit. The grouping of lease property and unutilized assets
was based on individual asset.
(2) Background to recognize impairment loss
In the Brokerage & Investment Banking Business, implementation of a new online securities operation system necessitated the disposal of the assets
used for the prior operation system. Since the recoverable amount was less than the carrying amount, the difference between the recoverable
amount and the carrying amount of the assets was recognized as an impairment loss. The amounts of impairment losses for buildings, furniture and
fixtures, software and leased assets were ¥2 million, ¥16 million, ¥36 million and ¥295 million, respectively.
In the Financial Services Business, the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount of assets used for the operation of
car related information site was recognized as an impairment loss due to no expectation of initially expected profits. The amounts of impairment
losses for buildings, furniture and fixtures, software and other assets were ¥3 million, ¥7 million, ¥138 million and ¥2 million, respectively.
In the Health Care Related Business, the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount of assets used for health care
operation was recognized as an impairment loss due to no expectation of initially expected profits. The amounts of impairment losses for buildings,
furniture and fixtures, software and other assets were ¥29 million, ¥86 million, ¥233 million and ¥10 million, respectively.
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(3) Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount is measured with the net sales value of zero for the assets to be disposed of. For the other assets, the recoverable amount
is measured with the value in use based on the future cash flow.

8. For the year ended 31 March 2010, the provision for doubtful accounts included additional ¥1,206 million which was
due from ZPYR. With regard to the settlement of the exercised right of avoidance by the oversight committee
member of the ZPYR Civil rehabilitation proceeding on 1 October 2009, the provision for doubtful accounts is
re-estimated. The impaired loan receivable is expected to be collected after foreclosure on ZPYR.

VIII. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The Group applied Accounting Standard for Presentation of Comprehensive Income (ASBJ Statement No. 25) issued on 30 June 2010 which
requires to present other comprehensive income and comprehensive income from the year ended 31 March 2011 prospectively. If ASBJ Statement
No. 25 applied for the year ended 31 March 2010, following information is presented.

1. Comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
(millions of Yen)

– Owners of the parent
– Minority interests
Total

7,384
(1,260)
6,124

2. Other comprehensive income:
(millions of Yen)

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities
Deferred gains on derivatives under hedge accounting
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Share of other comprehensive income of equity method affiliates
Total

2,130
41
(402)
4,169
5,939

IX. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
1. Outstanding number of capital stock and treasury stock
Year ended 31 March 2010

Outstanding capital stock
Common shares (Note 1)
Treasury stock
Common shares (Note 2)

As at 31 March 2009
(share)

Increase
(share)

Decrease
(share)

As at 31 March 2010
(share)

16,768,733

13,558

—

16,782,291

37,661

—

23,040

14,621

Notes: 1. The increase in common shares of 13,558 was due to exercise of stock acquisition rights.
2. T
 he decrease in treasury stock (common shares) of 23,040 was due to the acquisition of SBI Futures Co., Ltd.
SBI Futures became a wholly owned subsidiary through a share exchange.

Year ended 31 March 2011

Outstanding capital stock
Common shares
Treasury stock
Common shares

As at 31 March 2010
(share)

Increase
(share)

Decrease
(share)

As at 31 March 2011
(share)

16,782,291

3,161,727

—

19,944,018

14,621

—

—

14,621

Note: The increase in common shares of 3,161,727 consisted of newly issued 3,112,000 shares of which the settlement date was 23 June 2010, and shares by the exercise of 49,727
acquisition rights shares.
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2. Stock acquisition rights
Year ended 31 March 2010

Number of shares for stock acquisition rights (share)

As at 31
March 2009

Increase

Decrease

As at 31
March 2010

As at 31
March 2010
(millions of Yen)

330,383.77
—
—

—
—
—

16,871.13
—
—

313,512.64
—
—

—
11
11

Entity

Details of stock
acquisition rights

Type of share

Reporting entity
(the Company)
Consolidated subsidiaries
Total

Stock acquisition
rights (Notes 1, 2)
—
—

Common
shares
—
—

Notes: 1
 . Stock acquisition rights were exercisable during the year ended 31 March 2010.
2. The decrease in stock acquisition rights was due to the exercise and expiration of the rights.

Entity

Reporting entity
(the Company)
Consolidated subsidiaries
Total

Year ended 31 March 2011

Number of shares for stock acquisition rights (share)

As at 31
March 2010

Increase

Decrease

As at 31
March 2011

As at 31
March 2011
(millions of Yen)

313,512.64
—
—

6,811.13
—
—

66,405.53
—
—

253,918.24
—
—

—
11
11

Details of stock
acquisition rights

Type of share

Stock acquisition
rights (Notes 1, 2
and 3)
—
—

Common
shares
—
—

Notes: 1. Stock acquisition rights were exercisable during the year ended 31 March 2011.
2. The increase in stock acquisition rights was due to the adjustment of the number of shares for stock acquisition rights accompanying the issuance of new shares by offering.
3. The decrease in stock acquisition rights was due to the exercise and expiration of the rights.

3. Dividends
Dividend paid
Year ended 31 March 2010
Resolution

Type of share

Board of Directors’ Meeting
on 27 May 2009

Common shares

Dividend amount (millions
of Yen) Effective date

Amount per share
(Yen)

Declared date

Effective date

1,673

100

31 March 2009

11 June 2009

Dividend amount (millions
of Yen) Effective date

Amount per share
(Yen)

Declared date

Effective date

1,676

100

31 March 2010

14 June 2010

Year ended 31 March 2011
Resolution

Type of share

Board of Directors’ Meeting
on 26 May 2010

Common shares

Dividend whose declared date fell in the year ended 31 March 2010, and whose effective date will be in the year ended 31 March 2011
Resolution

Board of Directors’ Meeting
on 26 May 2010

Type of share

Common shares

Dividend amount
(millions of Yen)

1,676

Dividend resource

Retained
earnings

Amount per share
(Yen)

Declared date

Effective date

100

31 March 2010

14 June 2010

Dividend whose declared date fell in the year ended 31 March 2011, and whose effective date will be in the year ended 31 March 2012
Resolution

Board of Directors’ Meeting
on 27 April 2011
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Type of share

Common shares

Dividend amount
(millions of Yen)

2,391

Dividend resource

Retained
earnings

Amount per share
(Yen)

Declared date

Effective date

120

31 March 2011

9 June 2011
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X.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

1. Cash and cash equivalents reconciliation

Cash and deposits
Time deposits with original maturity of more than three months
Money Market Fund (MMF) included in trading instruments
Deposit included in others (current assets)
Cash and cash equivalents

2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

143,726
(1,275)
130
—
142,581

150,268
(1,623)
142
0
148,786

2. Cash paid/received resulting from change in scope of consolidation
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010
The followings are details of the selling price of the shares, assets and liabilities of a deconsolidated subsidiary.
millions of Yen

SBI AXA Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Current assets
Non-current assets
Deferred assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Statutory reserves
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities
Minority interests
Gains on sale of securities
Selling price of shares of SBI AXA Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Cash and cash equivalents of SBI AXA Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Difference: Cash received from sale of shares of SBI AXA Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

1,765
847
3,238
(258)
(228)
(0)
8
(2,414)
836
3,795
(1,267)
2,527

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
The followings are details of the acquisition cost of the stocks, assets and liabilities of a newly consolidated subsidiary.
millions of Yen

SBI Global Investment Co., Ltd.
Current assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill
Current liabilities
Minority interests
Acquisition cost of stocks of SBI Global Investment Co., Ltd. securities
Accumulated acquisition cost of stocks before obtaining control
Loss arising from remeasurement of the previously held equity interest
Cash and cash equivalents of SBI Global Investment Co., Ltd.
Difference: Cash paid in acquisition of SBI Global Investment Co., Ltd.

1,562
47
281
(604)
(601)
685
(493)
189
(133)
248
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XI. NOTES TO LEASE TRANSACTIONS
LESSEE
1. Finance lease
Finance lease transaction commenced before 31 March 2008 that did not transfer ownership are accounted in a manner similar to an operating
lease transaction. The information regarding these leases is as follows:
(a) Pro forma information of leased assets, on an “as if capitalized” basis as at 31 March 2010 and 2011
As at 31 March 2010

Acquisition costs
(millions of Yen)

Accumulated depreciation
(millions of Yen)

Carrying amount
(millions of Yen)

660
5,645
500
6,807

550
4,346
394
5,291

110
1,299
106
1,515

Acquisition costs
(millions of Yen)

Accumulated depreciation
(millions of Yen)

Carrying amount
(millions of Yen)

660
909
208
1,779

579
759
181
1,520

81
149
27
258

Building
Furniture and fixtures
Software
Total
As at 31 March 2011

Building
Furniture and fixtures
Software
Total
(b) Obligation balances under finance leases

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

1,168
483
1,652

213
125
33

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

1,850
—
1,678
53
—

1,076
295
976
27
295

Due within one year
Due after one year
Total
Note: The above information included obligations under finance leases, which were not cancellable for sub-lease contracts.

(c) Lease payments, reversal of accumulated impairment losses, depreciation, interest expenses and impairment losses:

Lease payments
Reversal of accumulated impairment losses
Depreciation
Interest expenses
Impairment losses

(d) Depreciation method
Leased assets were depreciated by using straight-line method over the lease terms with residual value of zero.
(e) Calculation of interest expenses
The difference between total lease payments and the acquisition cost was assumed to be interest expense and the interest method was used to
allocate interest expense to each year.

2. Operating lease
Future lease payments on operating lease contracts, which were not cancellable:

Due within one year
Due after one year
Total

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

1
0
2

0
—
0

LESSOR
On 30 March 2007, the ASBJ revised ASBJ Statement No. 13, “Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions,” which was issued on 17 June 1993
and “Guidance for Accounting Standard for Lease Transaction” (ASBJ Guidance No. 16 issued on 18 January 1994 and revised on 30 March 2007).
Under the revised standard, the disclosure regarding the lessor’s lease transactions were changed after 31 March 2008.
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1. Net investments in leases
Current assets

Leases receivable
Estimated residual values
Unearned interest income
Investment in leases, current

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

12,566
39
(644)
11,960

9,373
14
(413)
8,974

2. Maturity analysis for leases receivable for finance leases that transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee
Current assets
As at 31 March 2010

Leases receivable
(millions of Yen)
Investments in leases
(millions of Yen)
As at 31 March 2011

Leases receivable
(millions of Yen)
Investments in leases
(millions of Yen)

Within 1 year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years

Over 5 years

2,077

1,860

1,357

703

320

—

3,176

2,452

2,104

1,884

1,761

1,186

Within 1 year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years

Over 5 years

2,650

2,029

1,374

1,010

500

—

2,403

2,110

1,899

1,770

1,150

39

3. Future lease payments to be received under operating lease, which were not cancellable

Due within one year
Due after one year
Total

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

1
0
2

0
—
0

4. Leases receivable and lease investment assets, and lease obligations under a sublease transaction recorded at cost
including interest portion
(a) Leases receivable and lease investment assets

Current assets

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

7,230

5,665

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

1,530
5,151

1,167
3,984

(b) Lease obligation

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

XII. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
1. Details of the financial instruments
(1) Group Policy for Financial Instruments
The Group engages in a wide range of financial related businesses, such as investment business, fund management business, securities business,
leasing business, loan business, credit card business and insurance businesses, to avoid excessive concentration of risk on specific entities or businesses. To operate these businesses, the Group raises funds by indirect financing such as bank borrowing, direct financing such as bond issuance
and equity financing, and transaction with securities financing companies. The Group also considers the market environment and maintains an
appropriate strategy for short and long term financing.
The Group and certain consolidated subsidiaries utilize derivative instruments, including foreign currency forward contracts, interest rate swaps,
index futures, and foreign currency spot contracts.
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The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts and interest swap transactions primarily to hedge foreign exchange risk and to
manage its interest rate exposures on borrowings, respectively. The Group does not hold or issue them for speculative purpose. Index futures and
commodity futures were entered for the purpose of day trading or capping of the size of their transactions. Index futures were mainly daily trading
under limited trading scale. Foreign currency spot contracts were entered into for managing the exposures on foreign currency brokerage transactions. The transaction was conducted with individually counterparties based on the Group’s “Position Management Rule.”
(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
Financial assets held by the Group primarily consist of investment-related assets, securities-related assets and financing-related assets.
Investment-related assets include short-term investment securities, operational investment securities, and investment securities, which primarily
represent investment in stocks and funds. These assets are held through the Company or certain consolidated subsidiaries (including the consolidated investment funds) of the Company for the purpose of fostering the development of venture capital portfolio companies or earning capital
gains. These assets are exposed to the issuer’s credit risk and the stock price fluctuation risk. Furthermore, unlisted equity securities are exposed to
liquidity risk and investment assets denominated in foreign currency are exposed to the risk of exchange fluctuations.
Securities-related assets consist of trading instruments, margin transaction assets, short-term guarantee deposits and cash segregated as
deposits. These assets are exposed to the credit risk and the interest rate risk of the brokerage customers of some of the consolidated subsidiaries,
securities financing companies, and financial institutions.
Financing-related assets consist of operational loans receivable, leases receivable and lease investment assets and accounts receivable. These
assets include real estate loans for domestic companies and individuals, unsecured personal loans, leases receivable and lease investment assets
for operational companies and the receivable arising from the sales of leasing business or credit card business. These assets are exposed to the
interest rate risk and credit risk of accounts such as default due to worsening economic conditions with higher credit risk exposure.
Financial liabilities of the Group primarily consist of loans payable, bonds payable and securities-related liabilities. The loans payable of the Group
are exposed to liquidity risk from changes in the pricing policy of the financial institutions to the Group. Also, the bonds payable are monitored due to
liquidity risk from market conditions or reducing credit rating of the Group.
Securities-related liabilities consist of margin transaction liabilities, loans payable secured by securities on repurchase agreement transactions,
guarantee deposits received from margin transactions, and deposits from customers. The financing environment of the security business operated
by the Group’s certain subsidiaries is affected by the business policy of securities financing companies and its investment strategy. The Group exercises control by matching the financing with the related securities assets.
The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts and interest swap transactions primarily to hedge foreign exchange risk associated with
receivables, payables and securities denominated in foreign currencies and to manage its interest rate exposures on borrowings, respectively.
The Group manages index futures as a part of investment business which is exposed to market risk. Because the counterparties of foreign currency forward contracts and interest rate swap agreements are limited to creditworthy major Japanese financial institutions and index futures are
traded in the public market, the credit risk arising from default is considered to be minimal.
The Group also enters into foreign currency spot contracts in the course of ordinary operations, and for hedging risks arising from the business.
The transactions are subject to interest rate risks and foreign currency risks as well as exposed to credit risks with customers and credit and settlement risks with counterparties.
(3) Risk Management System over Financial Instruments
In order to maintain financial strength and appropriate operational procedures, the Company has risk management policies to identify, analyze and
manage the relevant risks integrally. The management policies for credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk are as follows:
Credit risk management
(a) Accurately analyze financial conditions of investees/debtors and quantity relevant credit risk.
(b) Appropriately manage the Group’s own capital and the related risks by periodic monitoring.
(c) Under foreign investments or lending transaction, the Group identifies intrinsic risk of investees/debtors through collaboration with domestic/
foreign offices as well as overseas partners followed by periodic monitoring.
(d) Recognize investment risk as significant risk to be controlled among various credit risks and perform detailed analysis of fluctuation in risk associated with operational investment securities.
Market risk management
(a) Understand underlying currency and term of assets and quantify market risk.
(b) Appropriately manage the balance between the Group’s own capital and its related risk by periodic monitoring.
(c) Never enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes in absence of established operating rules.
Liquidity risk management
(a) Secure various financing arrangements such as bank overdraft facility, bond issuance registration or stock issuance.
(b) Collect information on the Group’s working capital requirement and understand the cash flow positions.
(c) Obtain reports from the department responsible for cash management based upon the liquidity risk management policies stated in (a) and (b)
above to monitor cash flow risks.
Under these policies, the Company assigns a risk management officer who is in charge of risk management and sets up a risk management
department in line with the risk management rules and the group risk control rules in order to properly analyze and control these risks. The risk
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management department analyzes and monitors the Group’s risk on a timely basis.
(4) Fair Values of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market price. If quoted market price is not available, fair values are calculated with valuation
techniques which are considered to be reasonable. As the fair value determination takes variable factors into consideration, such fair values may
fluctuate by using different assumptions. Please see section “XIV. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS” for the detail of fair value of derivatives.

2. Fair value of financial instruments
The tables below presents the carrying amounts, the fair value of the financial instruments, and the difference between the carrying amounts and fair
value as at 31 March 2010 and 2011.
The tables below do not include assets and liabilities which cannot be measured at fair value due to difficulties in determining fair value (refer to
Note 2).

(1) Cash and deposits
(2) Notes and accounts
receivable—trade
(3) Leases receivable and lease
investment assets
(4) Short-term investment securities, operational investment
securities and investment
securities
Available-for-sale securities
Securities in affiliates
(5) Cash segregated as deposits
(6) Operational loans receivable
Allowance for doubtful
accounts(*1)
(7) Trading instruments
Trading securities
(8) Margin transaction assets
(9) Short-term guarantee deposits
Assets, total
(1) Short-term loans payable
(2) Current portion of bonds
payable
(3) Accrued income taxes
(4) Margin transaction liabilities
(5) Loans payable secured by
securities
(6) Guarantee deposits received
(7) Deposits from customers
(8) Bonds payable(*2)
(9) Long-term loans payable(*3)
Liabilities, total
Derivatives(*4)

Carrying amount

Fair value

As at 31 March 2010
Difference

Carrying amount

Fair value

As at 31 March 2011
Difference

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

143,726

143,726

—

150,268

150,268

—

8,483

8,508

24

10,658

10,549

(108)

17,924

18,063

138

16,166

16,300

134

33,888
1,133
318,865
34,694

33,888
1,136
318,865

—
2
—

60,546
5,068
347,865
27,905

60,546
3,314
347,865

—
(1,753)
—

(1,080)

(896)

1,027
261,641
5,944
826,248

1,027
261,641
5,944
828,785

—
—
—
2,536

222
250,399
5,235
873,441

222
250,399
5,235
873,025

—
—
—
(415)

55,614

55,614

—

97,164

97,164

—

112,600
4,953
150,036

112,600
4,953
150,036

—
—
—

—
4,574
143,757

—
4,574
143,757

—
—
—

63,780
282,373
31,176
—
40,988
741,524
734

63,780
282,373
31,176
—
40,994
741,530
734

—
—
—
—
6
6
—

61,797
309,134
37,819
70,600
43,514
768,362
2,367

61,797
309,134
37,819
70,600
43,537
768,385
2,367

—
—
—
—
22
22
—

Notes: (*1) Includes general reserve and specific reserve for operational loans receivable.
(*2) Includes current-portion of bonds payable as at 31 March 2011.
(*3) Includes current-portion of long term loans payable.
(*4) Receivables and payables arising from derivative transactions are stated at net value in the tables above.

NOTES:
(1) Calculation of fair value of financial instruments, investment securities and derivatives
(a) Assets
(i) (1) Cash and deposits, (5) Cash segregated as deposits, and (9) Short-term guarantee deposits
The fair values are measured at the carrying values as they approximate the carrying values because of their short maturities.
(ii) (2) Notes and accounts receivable-trade
With respect to notes and accounts receivable with short maturities, fair values are measured at the carrying values as they approximate the
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carrying values.
The fair values of receivables settled over long-term period such as installment sales receivable are measured at the present value of the future
cash inflow discounted at the discount rate considering government risk free rates and credit risk rates.
(iii) (3) Leases receivable and lease investment assets
The fair values of leases receivable and lease investment assets are measured at the present value of the future cash inflow discounted at the
discount rate considering government risk free rates and credit risk rates.
(iv) (4) Short-term investment securities, operational investment securities and investment securities and (7) Trading instruments
The fair values of equity securities are measured at the quoted market price of the stock exchange. The fair values of bonds are measured at the
quoted market price of the stock exchange or the quoted price provided by financial institutions. The fair values of investment trusts are measured at the price quoted by financial institutions. The fair values of investments in funds are measured at the fair values of partnership net assets
based on the Group’s percentage share in the contributed capital, if such fair values are available. Unlisted available- for-sale securities held by
certain overseas subsidiaries adopting International Financial Reporting Standards are measured at fair value.
(v) (6) Operational loans receivable
The fair values of operational loans receivable are measured at the present value of the future cash inflows, which are classified into different
types of receivables and discounted at the rate determined by reference to an appropriate index such as a government bond yield adjusted with
relevant credit risk.
As the estimated credit losses are provided based on the individual assessment of recoverability of loans receivable held by certain consolidated subsidiaries with corporate restructuring business, the fair values are measured at the carrying values less allowance for doubtful accounts
since they approximate the measured values.
(vi) (8) Margin transaction assets
With respect to receivables from customers of margin transaction assets, the fair values are measured at the carrying value as the interest rates
of the loans are floating rate and reflect the market interest rate within a short period so that, unless the borrower’s credit condition changes
significantly, the fair values are considered to approximate the carrying value.
Of these receivables, the fair values of those without set maturity date due to certain conditions such as the placing of a cap on the amount
of loans which does not exceed the value of pledged assets, are measured at the carrying value. Based on the expected repayment term and
the terms of interest, the fair values are considered to approximate the carrying values. With respect to cash collateral pledged for securities
borrowing on margin transaction, the fair values are measured at the carrying value because of their short maturities.
(b) Liabilities
The fair values of liabilities other than (8) Bonds payable and (9) Long-term loans payable are measured at the carrying values as they approximate
the carrying values because of their short maturities.
(i) (8) Bonds payable
With respect to bonds payable with maturity within one year, the fair values are measured at the carrying values as they approximate the carrying
values because of their short maturities.
With respect to bonds payable with maturity over one year and floating interest rates, the fair values are measured at the carrying value as the
interest rates of the debt reflect the market interest rate within a short period and as the credit conditions of consolidated subsidiaries that
obtained the debt are not expected to change significantly.
(ii) (9) Long-term loans payable
With respect to long-term loans payable with floating interest rates, the fair values are measured at the carrying value as the interest rates of the
debt reflect the market interest rate within a short period and as the credit conditions of consolidated subsidiaries that obtained the debt are not
expected to change significantly.
With respect to long-term loans payable with fixed rate, the fair values are measured at the present value of the future cash outflows, where
the sum of principal and interest at certain intervals, or the sum of principal and interest determined using interest swap rates for which the special hedge accounting treatment is used, is discounted at the discount rate that may be applicable for similar types of debt borrowed under
current conditions.
(c) Derivatives
The information of the fair value for derivatives is included in section “XIV. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS.”
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(2) The following securities were stated at cost because the fair values could not be reliably determined. They were excluded from “Assets-(iv) (4)
Short-term investment securities, operational investment securities and investment securities” of “Fair value of financial instruments.”
As at 31 March 2010
Classification

Available-for-sale securities
Non-fair valued equity securities(*1)
Non-fair valued bonds
Convertible bonds with stock acquisition rights(*2)
Investments in funds(*3)
Stock acquisition rights(*2)
Total
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates
Unlisted equity securities(*1)
Investments in funds(*3)
Total

Carrying amount
(millions of Yen)

90,051
2,414
6,680
31
99,177

28,369
452
28,822

As at 31 March 2011
Classification

Available-for-sale securities
Non-fair valued equity securities(*1)
Non-fair valued bonds
Convertible bonds with stock acquisition rights(*2)
Investments in funds(*3)
Stock acquisition rights(*2)
Total
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates
Unlisted equity securities(*1)
Investments in funds(*3)
Total

Carrying amount
(millions of Yen)

82,363
2,200
6,032
946
91,543

38,043
351
38,395

(*1) Unlisted equity securities were excluded from the fair value disclosure as there was no market value and it was extremely difficult to measure the fair value.
(*2) Convertible bonds with stock acquisition rights were excluded from the fair value disclosure as there was no market value and it was extremely difficult to estimate the future cash
flow as a basis of fair value.
(*3) Investments in funds whose investments were mainly composed of unlisted equity securities were excluded from the fair value disclosure as it was extremely difficult to measure
the fair value of unlisted equity.
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(3) Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities
(millions of Yen)

As at 31 March 2010

Cash and deposits
Notes and accounts
receivable—trade
Short-term investment securities,
operational investment securities
and investment securities with
maturity date
Debt securities
(Corporate bonds)
Cash segregated as deposits
Operational loans receivable
Margin transaction assets
Short-term guarantee deposits
Total

Within 1 year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years

Over 5 years

143,726

—

—

—

—

—

8,067

323

76

12

2

0

60
318,865
22,899
261,641
5,944
761,204

150
—
3,434
—
—
3,907

50
—
2,229
—
—
2,355

—
—
1,105
—
—
1,118

—
—
836
—
—
838

—
—
4,190
—
—
4,191

Within 1 year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years

Over 5 years

150,268

—

—

—

—

—

9,090

847

394

189

135

0

207
347,865
18,420
250,399
5,235
781,487

50
—
2,538
—
—
3,436

1,442
—
2,471
—
—
4,308

—
—
773
—
—
963

—
—
956
—
—
1,092

—
—
2,744
—
—
2,745

(millions of Yen)

As at 31 March 2011

Cash and deposits
Notes and accounts
receivable—trade
Short-term investment securities,
operational investment securities
and investment securities with
maturity date
Debt securities
(Corporate bonds)
Cash segregated as deposits
Operational loans receivable
Margin transaction assets
Short-term guarantee deposits
Total

(*) Maturities of leases receivable and lease investment assets after balance sheet date are described in the “Notes to lease transactions for consolidated financial statements.”

(4) Maturity analysis for long-term loans payable and other interest-bearing debt after balance sheet date
(millions of Yen)

As at 31 March 2010

Short-term loans payable
Current portion of bonds payable
Margin transaction liabilities
Borrowings on margin
transactions
Long-term loans payable
Total

Within 1 year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years

Over 5 years

55,614
112,600

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

48,813
13,368
230,396

—
10,066
10,066

—
16,494
16,494

—
100
100

—
—
—

—
960
960

Within 1 year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years

Over 5 years

97,164

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

60
18,315
18,375

60
4,918
4,978

60
1,065
1,125

60
6,700
6,760

300
365
665

(millions of Yen)

As at 31 March 2011

Short-term loans payable
Current portion of bonds payable
Margin transaction liabilities
Borrowings on margin
transactions
Long-term loans payable
Total
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70,386
70,060
12,147
249,758
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XIII. SECURITIES
The Group applied the revised accounting standard (ASBJ Statement No. 10 “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” issued on 10 March
2008) and the new guidance (ASBJ Guidance No. 19 “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures” issued
on 10 March 2008) after 31 March 2009.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

1. Trading instruments
Valuation gains of ¥75 million were included in income for the year ended 31 March 2010.

2. Available-for-sale securities with fair value
Type

Carrying amount exceeds
acquisition cost

Carrying amount does not
exceed acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Debt securities
Corporate bonds
(3) Others
Sub-total
(1) Equity securities
(2) Debt securities
Corporate bonds
(3) Others
Sub-total
Total

Carrying amount

Acquisition costs
(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

6,452

4,155

2,297

52
20,101
26,606
95,774

50
9,607
13,813
97,685

2
10,493
12,793
(1,910)

2,620
8,064
106,459
133,065

2,624
8,662
108,972
122,785

(4)
(598)
(2,513)
10,279

Proceeds from sales

Gains on sales

Losses on sales

10,273

4,828

308

1,745
197
3,560
15,777

47
0
599
5,476

—
0
—
309

(millions of Yen)

Difference

3. Available-for-sale securities sold during the year
Securities
(1) Equity securities
(2) Debt securities
Corporate bonds
Others
(3) Others
Total

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

4. Impairment loss on securities
Impairment loss on available-for-sale securities of ¥648 million was recorded during the year 2010.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

1. Trading instruments
Valuation losses of ¥14 million were included in income for the year ended 31 March 2011.

2. Available-for-sale securities with fair value
Type

Carrying amount exceeds
acquisition cost

Carrying amount does not
exceed acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Debt securities
Corporate bonds
(3) Others
Sub-total
(1) Equity securities
(2) Debt securities
Corporate bonds
(3) Others
Sub-total
Total

Carrying amount

Acquisition costs
(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

6,430

4,633

1,797

52
9,143
15,626
104,008

50
5,554
10,238
113,662

2
3,588
5,388
(9,654)

3,851
28,603
136,463
152,090

3,851
29,333
146,847
157,085

—
(730)
(10,384)
(4,995)

(millions of Yen)

Difference
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3. Available-for-sale securities sold during the year
Securities
(1) Equity securities
(2) Debt securities
Corporate bonds
Others
(3) Others
Total

Proceeds from sales

Gains on sales

Losses on sales

11,888

6,199

967

6
—
—
11,895

1
—
—
6,200

—
—
—
967

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

4. Impairment loss on securities
Impairment loss on equity securities of ¥2,174 million (¥1,858 million on available-for-sale securities and ¥315 million on investments in subsidiaries
and affiliates) was recorded during the year 2011.

XIV. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010 AND 2011

1. Derivatives not subject to hedge accounting policy

Type

Transaction

Transactions outside market

Foreign currency
forward contracts
Short
Long
Foreign currency spot
contracts
Short
Long

Total
Market transactions

Index futures Long

Type

Transaction

Transactions outside market

Foreign currency
forward contracts
Short
Long
Foreign currency spot
contracts
Short
Long

Total
Market transactions

Index futures Long

Contractual amounts

Over 1 year

Fair value

As at 31 March 2010
Valuation gains (losses)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

27
28

—
—

(0)
0

(0)
0

112,660
112,078
—
62

—
—
—
—

(1,752)
2,486
733
1

(1,752)
2,486
733
1

Contractual amounts

Over 1 year

Fair value

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

As at 31 March 2011
Valuation gains (losses)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

85
91

—
—

(0)
(0)

(0)
(0)

187,335
184,683
—
68

—
—
—
—

73
2,294
2,367
0

73
2,294
2,367
0

Fair value of foreign currency forward contract was stated based on future exchange rate at balance sheet date, whereas fair value of foreign
currency spot contracts was based on spot rate at the balance sheet date. Fair value of index futures was based on market closing price at the
balance sheet date in each stock market.

2. Derivatives subject to hedge accounting
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Hedge accounting method

Transaction

Hedged balance

Interest rate swap

Interest rate swaps
Variable receipt fixed
payment

Long-term loans
payable

(millions of Yen)

Over 1 year

(millions of Yen)

As at 31 March 2010
Fair value

3,650

1,730

(Note 2)

Contract amounts

(millions of Yen)
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Hedge accounting method

Transaction

Deferred method of interest
rate swap

Interest rate swaps
Variable receipt fixed
payment
Interest rate swaps
Variable receipt fixed
payment

Interest rate swap

Hedged balance

(millions of Yen)

Over 1 year

(millions of Yen)

As at 31 March 2011
Fair value

600

540

(14)

5,480

3,460

(Note 2)

Contract amounts

Bonds payable
Long-term loans
payable

(millions of Yen)

Note: 1. Fair values were measured at the quoted market price of the stock exchange or the quoted market price provided by financial institutions.
2. For certain loans payable for which interest rate swaps were used to hedge the interest-rate fluctuations, the fair values of derivative financial instruments were included in the
fair value of loans payable as hedged items.

XV.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has a contributory funded defined benefit pension plan and a defined contribution pension plan. Certain of the Group’s domestic consolidated subsidiaries have tax-qualified plan, non-contributory funded defined pension plan and either a contributory funded defined benefit pension
plan or a defined contribution pension plan for the employees’ retirement plan.

1. Detail of the multi-employer plans for which the required contribution amounts were expensed as incurred
(latest information)
(a) Total pension funding status:

Kanto IT Software Health
Insurance Society

(As at 31 March 2009)
Association of Welfare
Pension Fund in the
Commodity Futures Industry

127,937
155,636
(27,699)

48,150
62,295
(14,144)

(millions of Yen)

Plan assets
Benefit Obligation
Difference

(As at 31 March 2010)
Kanto IT Software Health
Insurance Society

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

Plan assets
Benefit Obligation
Difference

161,054
159,998
1,055

(b) The percentage of participants of the Group to above pension plan:
Kanto IT Software Health Insurance Society
Association of Welfare Pension Fund in the Commodity Futures Industry

(As at 31 March 2010)

(As at 31 March 2011)

1.03%
0.56%

1.10%

2. Liability for employees’ retirement benefits
The following is related to the defined benefit pension plan and tax qualified pension plan for certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries.

(a) Projected benefit obligations
(b) Fair value of plan assets
(c) Provision for retirement benefits ((a) + (b))

2010

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(108)
56
(52)

(118)
48
(69)

3. Retirement benefit expense

Contribution to pension funds (Note 1)
Service cost (Note 2)
Contributions to the defined contribution pension plan (Note 3)
Total

2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

138
39
276
454

122
41
292
456

Notes:
(1) Contribution amounted to multi-employer pension funds.
(2) Retirement benefit expense of certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries which applied compendium method.
(3) Contribution to the defined benefit pension plan and prepayment to pension plan.
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4. Basis for calculation of retirement benefit obligation
Certain domestic subsidiaries, which apply either defined benefit pension plan or tax-qualified pension plan, use simplified method for the calculation
of retirement obligation.

XVI. STOCK OPTION PLAN
Stock options outstanding as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:
Stock Options Issued by the Company
Stock Option

2001 Stock Option

Number of Options
Outstanding

11,394 shares

Date of Grant

Exercise Price

2002.2.1

¥19,666*

2002 Stock Option (1)

12,096.72 shares

2002.12.20

¥ 5,659*

2003 Stock Option (1)

20,465.52 shares

2003.9.25

¥16,908*

2003 Stock Option (2)

58,419.93 shares

2003.9.25

¥16,908*

2003 Stock Option (3)

16,709.07 shares

2003.10.23

¥26,152*

2005 Stock Option (1)

23,944 shares

2005.7.28

¥33,172*

Exercise Period

From 20 December 2003 to
19 December 2011
From 20 December 2004 to
19 December 2012
From 20 December 2004 to
19 December 2012
From 24 June 2005 to
23 June 2013
From 24 June 2005 to
23 June 2013
From 28 July 2005 to
29 June 2013

*Due to the new stock issuance through public offering dated 23 June 2010, the exercise price is adjusted.

Stock Options Assumed by the Company due to Mergers and Acquisitions
Stock Option

E*TRADE Japan K.K. Stock Option

Number of Options
Outstanding

50,077.44 shares

Date of Grant

¥11,423*

SBI HOME Planner Co., LTD. 2003 Stock Option

514.29 shares

2004.4.15

¥21,349*

SBI Partners Co., Inc. 2005 Stock Option

580.80 shares

2005.11.29

¥35,050*

1,840 shares

2002.9.25

¥ 4,465

5,440 shares

2003.8.2

¥ 4,465

172.50 shares

2003.7.15

¥16,447*

18,769.15 shares

2004.6.29

¥47,447*

2004.12.22

¥30,180*

18,349.40 shares

2005.7.4

¥44,405*

13,331.84 shares

2008.8.1

¥45,663*

1,779.08 shares

2008.8.1

¥53,447*

FINANCE ALL CORPORATION
2002 Stock Option
FINANCE ALL CORPORATION
2003 Stock Option
WORLD NICHIEI Securities Co., LTD.
2003 Stock Option
WORLD NICHIEI FRONTIER Securities Co., LTD.
2004 Stock Option
WORLD NICHIEI FRONTIER Securities Co., LTD.
2004 Stock Option
SBI Securities Co., Ltd.
2005 Stock Option
SBIH (3) Stock Option
SBIH (4) Stock Option
Total

34.50 shares

253,918.24 shares

* Due to the new stock issuance through public offering dated 23 June 2010, the exercise price is adjusted.
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Exercise Price

2002.7.1

Exercise Period

From 21 June 2004 to
20 June 2012
From 28 June 2005 to
27 June 2013
From 1 December 2005 to
31 October 2013
From 25 September 2004 to
24 September 2012
From 2 August 2005 to
1 August 2013
From 1 July 2005 to
26 June 2013
From 30 June 2006 to
29 June 2014
From 30 June 2006 to
29 June 2014
From 30 June 2007 to
29 June 2015
From 1 August 2008 to
23 June 2013
From 1 August 2008 to
23 June 2013
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Stock Options Issued by Consolidated Subsidiaries
Stock Option

SBI Mortgage Co., Ltd.
Stock Option (1)

Number of Options
Outstanding
(Non-vested)

Date of Grant

Exercise Price

Exercise Period

4,700 shares
(4,700 shares)

2005.5.25

¥   7,500

From 26 May 2007 to
25 May 2015

19 shares

2005.8.29

¥100,000

Stock Option (3)

960 shares

2008.6.1

¥270,834

From 30 August 2007 to
29 August 2015
From 1 June 2008 to
31 March 2013

Total

979 shares

SBI Life Living Co., Ltd.
Stock Option (2)

SBI Biotech Co., Ltd.
Stock Option (1)

2002.10.15

¥   5,000

Stock Option (2)

620 shares
(620 shares)
536 shares

2002.10.15

¥   5,000

Stock Option (5)

90 shares

2005.9.28

¥175,000

336 shares

2004.2.13

¥   5,741

From 13 February 2006 to
12 February 2014

2,368 shares

2003.11.5

¥ 57,500

250 shares

2006.4.21

¥133,500

From 20 March 2005 to
19 March 2013
From 24 March 2008 to
23 March 2016

40 shares

2003.3.15

¥ 44,250

2005 Stock Option

294 shares

2005.6.15

¥100,000

Total

334 shares

2002.4.5

¥   9,636

Total

SBI VeriTrans Co., Ltd.
2004 Stock Option
Morningstar Japan K.K.
2003 Stock Option (1)
2006 Stock Option (2)
Total
Gomez Consulting Co., Ltd.
2003 Stock Option

HOMEOSTYLE, Inc.
Warrant (1)

1,246 shares
(1,246 shares)

2,618 shares

4,908 shares

Warrant (2)

979 shares

2004.8.24

¥   9,636

Stock Option (3)

285 shares

2005.2.28

¥ 16,000

Stock Option (4)

8,004 shares

2006.3.31

¥ 19,000

4,081 shares
(4,081 shares)
18,257 shares
(18,257 shares)

2004.7.2

¥ 11,903

TK International Co., Ltd.
Stock Option (the stock option which was taken
over by HOMEOSTYLE, Inc. due to the M&A)
Total

30 months after 6 months
passed from the IPO
From 15 October 2004 (536
shares) to 31 August 2012
From 29 September 2005 (90
shares) to 30 August 2015

From 15 March 2005 to
14 March 2013
From 3 June 2007 to
2 June 2015

From 1 June 2002 (4,908 shares)
to 12 March 2012
From 1 June 2002 (979 shares)
to 12 March 2012
From 1 March 2007 (285 shares)
to 24 February 2015
From 1 April 2008 (8,004 shares)
to 25 March 2016
From 6 July 2006 to
30 June 2014
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Stock Option

Number of Options
Outstanding
(Non-vested)

Date of Grant

Exercise Price

Autoc one K.K
Stock Option (1)

5,850 shares

2002.12.27

¥ 10,000

Stock Option (3)

1,200 shares

2004.10.29

¥ 50,000

Stock Option (4)

200 shares

2005.2.25

¥ 50,000

Stock Option (5)

100 shares

2005.4.20

¥ 50,000

Stock Option (6)

50 shares

2005.4.20

¥ 50,000

Stock Option (7)

1,050 shares

2006.4.20

¥ 50,000

Stock Option (8)

30 shares

2008.3.28

¥ 60,000

2000.10.20

¥ 50,000

2002.4.17

¥460,000

Total

SBI Trade Win Tech Co., Ltd.
Warrant (2)
Warrant (3)
Total

Exercise Period

From 1 November 2004 (5,850
shares) to 30 September 2012
From 1 August 2006 (1,200
shares) to 31 May 2014
From 1 August 2006 (200
shares) to 31 May 2014
From 1 August 2006 (100
shares) to 31 May 2014
From 1 August 2006 (50 shares)
to 31 May 2014
From 28 June 2007 (1,050
shares) to 27 June 2015
From 29 June 2009 (30 shares)
to 28 June 2017

8,480 shares
(8,480 shares)

1,000 shares
320 shares

From 1 January 2001 (1,000
shares) to 16 April 2012
From 18 April 2002 (320 shares)
to 16 April 2012

1,320 shares
(1,320 shares)

The stock option activity for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2011 is as follows:
SBI Holdings, Inc.

Year Ended 31 March 2010
Non-vested:
31 March 2009—outstanding
Granted
Cancelled
Vested
31 March 2010—outstanding
Vested:
31 March 2009—outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Cancelled
31 March 2010—outstanding

SBI Life Living Co., Ltd.

SBI Biotech Co., Ltd.
(Shares)

4,700

1,246

4,700

1,246

330,383.77

979

13,571.35
3,299.78
313,512.64

979

Year Ended 31 March 2011
Non-vested:
31 March 2010—outstanding
Granted
Cancelled
Vested
31 March 2011—outstanding
Vested:
31 March 2010—outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Cancelled
31 March 2011—outstanding

SBI Mortgage Co., Ltd.

4,700

1,246

4,700

1,246

320,323.77*

979

49,737.50
16,668.03
253,918.24

979

* Due to the new stock issuance through public offering dated 23 June 2010, number of objective stocks were adjusted, therefore, the adjustments were reflected in the number of
beginning balance of period.
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SBI Futures Co., Ltd.

Year Ended 31 March 2010
Non-vested:
31 March 2009—outstanding
Granted
Cancelled
Vested
31 March 2010—outstanding
Vested:
31 March 2009—outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Cancelled
31 March 2010—outstanding

SBI VeriTrans Co., Ltd.

Morningstar Japan K.K.

Gomez Consulting Co., Ltd.
(Shares)

1,632

2,954

704

516

2,954

704

516

2,954

704

183
183

950

1,116
950

Year Ended 31 March 2011
Non-vested:
31 March 2010—outstanding
Granted
Cancelled
Vested
31 March 2011—outstanding
Vested:
31 March 2010—outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Cancelled
31 March 2011—outstanding

Year Ended 31 March 2010
Non-vested:
31 March 2009—outstanding
Granted
Cancelled
Vested
31 March 2010—outstanding

180
336
HOMEOSTYLE, Inc.

Autoc one K.K.

SBI Net Systems Co., Ltd.

18,899

9,760

35

960

18,864

8,800

Vested:
31 March 2009—outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Cancelled
31 March 2010—outstanding
Year Ended 31 March 2011
Non-vested:
31 March 2010—outstanding
Granted
Cancelled
Vested
31 March 2011—outstanding

370
336
2,618

334
SBI Trade Win Tech Co., Ltd.
(Shares)

1,320

1,320

455

455

18,864

8,800

607

320

18,257

8,480

1,320

1,320

Vested:
31 March 2010—outstanding
Vested
Exercised
Cancelled
31 March 2011—outstanding
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XVII. NOTES TO INCOME TAXES
1. Major components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities
2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

Deferred tax assets - Current
Losses on valuation of investment securities (current assets)
Provision of allowance for investment losses (current assets)
Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts
Tax loss carried forward
Accrued enterprise taxes
Elimination of unrealized profit
Others
Subtotal
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets—Current
Deferred tax assets (investment and other assets)
Tax loss carried forward
Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts
Losses on valuation of investment securities (non-current assets)
Statutory reserve for financial products transaction liabilities
Others
Subtotal
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets (investment and other assets)
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities—Current
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities
Total deferred tax liabilities—Current
Deferred tax liabilities—Non-current
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities
Others
Total deferred tax liabilities—Non-current
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

4,181
1,712
1,258
1,312
399
—
1,372
10,237
(1,099)
9,137

2,807
1,809
—
1,523
471
8,550
459
15,622
(1,284)
14,337

14,229
1,217
4,286
2,942
2,179
24,855
(9,813)
15,042
24,179

16,644
1,799
4,034
2,209
2,728
27,415
(13,837)
13,578
27,916

(4,430)
(4,430)

(3,313)
(3,313)

(1,197)
(187)
(1,385)
(5,815)
18,364

(998)
(173)
(1,172)
(4,486)
23,429

2. Reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate
2010

Normal effective tax rate
Expenses not deductible for income taxes purpose
(Entertainment expenses, etc.)
Amortization of goodwill
Minority interests in fund, etc.
Income (losses) of the equity method
Consolidated adjustments of loss on sale of consolidated subsidiaries
Change in valuation allowance
Others—net
Actual effective tax rate
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Year ended 31 March
2011

40.69%

40.69%

20.71%
343.09%
50.47%
4.35%
(173.26)%
(219.29)%
13.20%
79.96%

1.49%
64.17%
(39.43)%
(1.23)%
(33.05)%
96.03%
1.93%
130.60%

SBI Holdings, Inc. Annual Report 2011

XVIII. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

1. Transaction under common control (“acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary”)
(a) Share exchange—SBI Futures Co., Ltd. (“SBI Futures”)
(i) Combined company’s name, its business, legal structure of business combination, company’s name after business combination and summary
of transaction including its purpose.
Combined company’s name
SBI Futures Co., Ltd.
Combined company’s business
Futures trader
Legal structure of business combination	Share exchanges between the Company and minority interests of SBI Futures. After share
exchange, SBI Futures became wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Company’s name after business combination
No Change
Summary of transaction including its purpose	Although SBI Futures Co., Ltd. discontinued commodities futures business on 31 July 2009,
the Company wholly owned it through a share exchange on 1 August 2009 to succeed online
foreign exchange business which is anticipated a synergy effect and other business reorganizations smoothly.
(ii) Summary of accounting treatment
“Accounting for business combinations” (ASBJ published as at 31 October 2003) and “Guidance for Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Guidance No. 10 published as at 15 November 2007), it is proceeded as trades with minority interests
of those with common control.
(iii) Additional acquisition of stocks of subsidiary
— Acquisition cost and details
Consideration of acquisition
The Company’s common shares
¥276 million
Direct acquisition cost
Research cost
¥2 million
Acquisition cost 		
¥278 million
— Share exchange ratio according to stock types, its computation basis, granted stocks, and those valuations
Share exchange ratio
Common shares The Company 1: SBI Futures 3
Computation basis 	The valuations were conducted by HIBIYA & Co. on the company’s side and conducted by
TGP Business Solutions Co., Ltd. on SBI Futures Co., Ltd.’s side as independent source for
share exchange. Stock exchange ratio was determined based on the valuation reports from
both parties.
Exchanged shares
23,040 shares (all allotted treasury stocks the Company owns)
Fair value of exchanged shares
¥276 million
— Amount of goodwill recognized, reason of its occurrence, and amortization method and period
Amount of goodwill recognized
¥34 million
Reason of occurrence 	The Company recorded the difference between the additional acquisition cost of SBI Futures
Co., Ltd.’s common shares and decreasing amount of minority interests as a goodwill.
Amortization method and period
One-time amortization in the consolidated year due to the goodwill amount being immaterial.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

1. Acquisition
(a) Acquisition of shares of KTIC Global Investment Advisory Co., Ltd.
(i) Acquired company’s name, its business, reason and date of business combination, legal structure of business combination, company’s name
after business combination, ratio of voting rights, and basis of determining the acquiring company
Acquired company’s name
Acquired company’s business
Reason of business combination
Date of business combination
Legal structure of business combination
Company’s name after business combination
Ratio of voting rights

Basis of determining the acquiring company

KTIC Global Investment Advisory Co., Ltd.
Investment consulting business and investment discretion business
Utilizing the network of the acquired company to expand the investment business in Asia.
1 June 2010
Acquisition of shares by cash as consideration
SBI Global Investment Co., Ltd.
Ratio of voting rights before business combination: 22.9%
Ratio of voting rights through additional acquisition: 17.2%
Ratio of voting rights after business combination:
40.1%
The company’s consolidated subsidiary acquired the shares by cash as
consideration.

(ii) Acquired company’s period included in the consolidated statements of operations: From 1 July 2010 to 31 March 2011
(iii) Acquisition cost and its details
Consideration of acquisition

Acquisition cost

Fair value of common shares held before the
4,055 millions of Korean Won
business combination at the date of business
combination
Fair value of common shares additionally acquired 5,094 millions of Korean Won
at the date of business combination
9,150 millions of Korean Won

(iv) The difference between the fair value of the holding shares and the total acquisition cost of each transaction:
(2,535) millions of Korean Won
(v) Amount of goodwill recognized, reason of its occurrence and amortization method and period
Goodwill
3,508 millions of Korean Won
Reason of occurrence 	The goodwill arises from the excess earning power expected in the future through business expansion.
Amortization method and period 	The goodwill is amortized on a straight-line method over 20 years.
(vi) Assets and liabilities recognized at the date of business combination are as follows:
(millions of Korean Won)

Current assets
Non-current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Total liabilities

21,856
662
22,519
8,460
8,460

(vii) The approximate estimated amount of impact to the consolidated statements of operations assuming that the business combination has
been completed at the beginning of the current period is as follows:
Net Sales (millions of Yen)
Ordinary income (millions of Yen)
Net income (millions of Yen)

18
(47)
3

The approximate estimated amount of impact to the consolidated statements of operations was calculated as the difference between the
financial figures of the newly consolidated subsidiary assuming that the business combination had been completed at the beginning of the current period and the actual financial figures of the subsidiary on the consolidated statements of operations.
The above estimated amounts are out of the scope of audit.
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XIX. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group applied ASBJ Statement No. 17 issued on 27 March 2009, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” and ASBJ
Guidance No. 20 issued on 21 March 2008, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” after 31 March 2010. Segment Information for the year ended 31 March 2010 set out below is based on ASBJ Statement No. 17 and ASBJ Guidance No. 20.
For the year ended 31 March 2010, we reported our results of operations based on five business segments: asset management, brokerage and
investment banking, financial services, housing and real estate, and system solution. From 1 April 2010, we included the system solutions business
segment in other businesses segment as a result of application of ASBJ Statement No. 17 and ASBJ Guidance No. 20.

1. Overview of reportable segments
Separate financial information of the Group’s components is available and reviewed regularly by the board of directors for the purposes of allocation
of financial resources and performance evaluation.
The Group engages in a wide range of business activities, mainly the financial service business. Based on the similarities of economic characteristics of business or nature of services, “Asset Management Business,” “Brokerage and Investment Banking Business,” “Financial Services Business,” and “Housing and Real Estate Business” are determined as reportable segments.
“Asset Management Business” primarily consists of fund management and investment in internet technology, biotechnology, environment energy
and financial-related venture companies.
“Brokerage and Investment Banking Business” primarily consists of financial businesses, such as trustee of securities trading, underwriting
and offering for sale of IPO shares, offering for subscription or sale of stocks, foreign currency spot contracts, and other financial instrument
trading business.
“Financial Services Business” primarily consists of financial-related businesses, such as property and casualty insurance business, credit card
business and the provision of information regarding financial products.
“Housing and Real Estate Business” primarily consists of developing and trading of investment property, financing business related to the granting of mortgage loans, operating web sites related to the provision of intermediate service, comparison and real estate appraisal service.

2. Measurement of reportable segment profits or losses and segment assets
The accounting treatment of reportable segments is same as adopted in preparation of consolidated financial statements.
The segment income is based on operating income. The inter-segment revenue and amounts of transferring to other accounts are based on
market price.

3. Information about reportable segments
Reportable segment

Year ended 31 March 2010

Net sales
Revenue from customers
Inter-segment revenue
Total
Segment operating income (loss)
Segment assets
Other items
Depreciation
Amortization of goodwill
Investment in subsidiaries and
affiliates applying equity-method
Increase in property and equipment, intangible assets

Asset Management Business

Brokerage &
Investment
Banking
Business

Financial
Services
Business

Housing and
Real Estate
Business
(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

Sub-total

Others (Note)
(millions of Yen)

Total

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

20,189
—
20,189
2,543
198,466

46,986
3,136
50,122
9,374
880,834

24,441
1,164
25,605
206
96,917

17,152
1
17,153
872
109,003

108,769
4,302
113,071
12,998
1,285,222

15,772
1,117
16,889
(2,104)
20,985

124,541
5,419
129,961
10,893
1,306,207

52
184

2,324
5,921

1,003
385

301
767

3,681
7,260

411
504

4,093
7,764

82

2,651

14,455

30

17,219

—

17,219

2,053

7,087

3,916

410

13,469

2,180

15,649

Note: Business segments classified into “Others” are segments not determined as reportable segments which consist of system-related business, drug-discovery business and
garment business.
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Reportable segment

Year ended 31 March 2011

Net sales
Revenue from customers
Inter-segment revenue
Total
Segment operating income (loss)
Segment assets
Other items
Depreciation
Amortization of goodwill
Investment in subsidiaries and
affiliates applying equity-method
Increase in property and equipment, intangible assets

Asset Management Business

Brokerage &
Investment
Banking
Business

Financial
Services
Business

Housing and
Real Estate
Business
(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

Sub-total

Others (Note)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

Total

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

30,699
1
30,701
9,577
222,364

45,374
2,498
47,873
6,123
909,176

28,364
2,165
30,530
(536)
122,716

23,464
3
23,467
3,370
104,821

127,903
4,669
132,573
18,534
1,359,078

13,178
2,453
15,631
(1,832)
16,793

141,081
7,122
148,204
16,702
1,375,872

50
274

2,734
5,851

1,277
526

439
728

4,502
7,381

479
508

4,982
7,889

4,146

2,062

25,661

—

31,870

238

32,109

685

3,196

4,020

538

8,440

482

8,923

Note: Business segments classified into “Others” are segments not determined as reportable segments which consist of system-related business, drug-discovery business and
garment business.

4. Reconciliation of the differences between the total amount of reportable segments and the total amount recorded in
the consolidated financial statements:
For the year ended 31 March
2010
2011

Net sales
Total of reportable segments
Net sales of “Others”
Elimination among segments
Net sales of consolidated financial statements

(millions of Yen)

113,071
16,889
(5,419)
124,541

(millions of Yen)

132,573
15,631
(7,122)
141,081

For the year ended 31 March
2010
2011

Operating income
Total of reportable segments
Losses of “Others”
Elimination among segments
Headquarters expenses (Note)
Operating income of consolidated financial statements

(millions of Yen)

12,998
(2,104)
(2,479)
(4,982)
3,431

(millions of Yen)

18,534
(1,832)
(1,765)
(6,004)
8,932

Note: Headquarters expenses are general administrative expenses which are not attributable to reportable segments.

2010

Assets
Total of reportable segments
Assets of “Others”
Elimination among segments
Headquarters assets (Note)
Assets of consolidated financial statements
Note: Headquarters assets are principally cash and deposits.
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As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

1,285,222
20,985
(94,550)
18,282
1,229,939

1,359,078
16,793
(94,348)
12,082
1,293,606

SBI Holdings, Inc. Annual Report 2011

Other item
Depreciation
Amortization of goodwill
Investment in subsidiaries
and affiliates applying equitymethod
Increase in property and equipment, intangible assets

2010

For the year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

Total of
reportable
segments

Others

Amount of
adjustment

Total of
consolidated
financial
statements

Total of
reportable
segments

Others

Amount of
adjustments

Total of
consolidated
financial
statements

3,681
7,260

411
504

475
—

4,568
7,764

4,502
7,381

479
508

399
—

5,381
7,889

17,219

—

—

17,219

31,870

238

—

32,109

13,469

2,180

154

15,803

8,440

482

202

9,125

5. Impairment losses in each reportable segment for the year ended 31 March 2011:
Impairment losses
Asset Management Business
Brokerage & Investment Banking Business
Financial Services Business
Housing and Real Estate Business
Others (Note)
Headquarters expenses and elimination among segment
Total

(millions of Yen)

—
350
150
—
360
—
861

Note: “Others” consists of health care related business.

6. Balance of goodwill in each segment as at 31 March 2011:
Goodwill
Asset Management Business
Brokerage & Investment Banking Business
Financial Services Business
Housing and Real Estate Business
Others (Note)
Headquarters expenses and elimination among segment
Total

(millions of Yen)

4,603
97,878
6,144
10,953
6,717
—
126,297

Note: “Others” consists of system-related business, drug-discovery business and garment business.

7. Geographical information
(1) Net sales
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
Japan

Asia

Others

Total

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

117,237

22,984

859

141,081

Note: Net sales were classified into countries or regions according to customer location.

Net sales of the Company and consolidated domestic subsidiaries exceeded 90% of the total net sales for the year ended 31 March 2010.
Therefore, geographical information regarding net sales for the year ended 31 March 2010 is not presented herein.
(2) Property and equipment
Property and equipment of the Company and consolidated domestic subsidiaries exceeded 90% of the total assets as at 31 March 2011 in the
consolidated balance sheets. Therefore, geographical segment information is not presented herein.

8. Information of major customers
There was no major customer which accounted for more than 10% of the total net sales.
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XX. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
“Accounting standard for the disclosure of Related Party Transactions” (ASBJ No. 11, 17 October 2006) and Implementation Guidance No. 13, “Guidance on the disclosure of Related Party Transactions” (ASBJ No. 13, 17 October 2006) were applied starting from the year ended 31 March 2009.

1. Transactions with the executives and main individual shareholders of the Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010
Type

Name

Address

Director

Yoshitaka
Kitao

—

Capital

(millions of Yen)

—

Business or
position

Ownership
(%)

Transaction
description

The
(Ownership
Sales of
Company’s
by the
equity
Representa- related
securities
tive and
party) Direct
CEO
1.8

Contents

Sales of
operational
investment
securities

Amounts

(millions of Yen)

2,975

Account
name

Balance

(millions of Yen)

Current
assets
(Accrued
revenue)

2,975

Note: Terms of transactions and policy for the terms
(1) T
 he sale price was based on the contract of sales of investment securities, which occurred in the year ended 31 March 2009 and it was determined in consideration of the
price of transaction with independent third party. The payment term was cash disbursement at one time.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
Type

Name

Address

Director

Yoshitaka
Kitao

—

Capital

(millions of Yen)

—

Business or
position

Ownership
(%)

Transaction
description

The
(Ownership
Sales of
Company’s
by the
equity
Representa- related
securities
tive and
party) Direct
CEO
1.6

Contents

Sales of
investment
securities

(millions of Yen)

Amounts

Account
name

(millions of Yen)

999

—

—

Balance

Note: Terms of transactions and policy for the terms
(1) T
 he sale price was determined in consideration of the price of transaction with independent third party. The payment term was cash disbursement at one time.

2. Significant affiliate information
Summarized financial information of SBI Sumishin Net Bank, Ltd. which was a significant affiliate for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2011 is
as follows:
2010

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets
Ordinary income
Income before income taxes
Net income

As at 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

1,248,640
1,222,011
26,628
20,738
2,322
2,316

1,696,189
1,654,961
41,227
29,054
3,534
3,528

2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

XXI. NOTES TO PER SHARE INFORMATION
Net assets per share
Net income per share
Diluted net income per share
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(Yen)

(Yen)

21,424.02
140.30
116.84

19,610.64
236.09
225.74
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Notes:

1. Basis of calculation of the net assets per share

Total net assets
Total deducted amount from net asset
Details
– Stock acquisition rights
– Minority interest
Net assets attributable to common shareholders at the end of the year
The number of common shares outstanding at the end of the year

2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

428,615
(69,384)

456,982
(66,154)

(11)
(69,372)
359,230
16,767,670

(11)
(66,142)
390,828
19,929,397

2. Basis of calculation for the net income (loss) and diluted net income per share

Net income per share
Net income for the year
Net income not attributable to common shareholders
Net income attributable to common shareholders
Average number of common shares outstanding during the year
Diluted net income per share
Adjustment on net income for the year
Effect of dilutive shares issued by consolidated subsidiaries
Increased number of common shares
Increased by exercising acquisition right

2010

Year ended 31 March
2011

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

2,350
—
2,350
16,750,591

4,534
—
4,534
19,207,974

(387)
(387)
49,358
49,358

(194)
(194)
20,501
20,501

3. Overview of stocks with potential dilutive effect excluded from the calculation
For the year ended 31 March 2010: Stock acquisition right issued by the stock option plan (Potential shares: 182,637 shares)
For the year ended 31 March 2011: Stock acquisition right issued by the stock option plan (Potential shares: 184,464 shares)

XXII. INFORMATION FOR THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010
(1) Number of consolidated subsidiaries: 103
As compared with the year ended 31 March 2009, there were 33 additions to and 12 exclusion from the scope of consolidation.
Additions—19 entities were newly established or acquired
— SBI Trans-Science Co., Ltd.
— SBI Selective Target Investment LPS
— SBI Innovation Fund No. 1
— Metropolitan Enterprise Revitalization Fund, Limited Liability Investment Partnership No. 2
— SBI European Fund
— SBI Zhaoxin L.P. and 13 other entities
Additions—11 entities were newly consolidated due to the Group’s ability to exercise control
— SBI-HIKARI PE Co., Ltd.
— SHENTON STRUCTURED PROJECTS PTE. LTD.
— Elan SBI Capital Partners Fund Management Private Limited Company
— SBI Zhaoxin Advisor Limited
— SBI Servicer Co., Ltd.
— SBI Receipt Co., Ltd.
— SBI Business Support Co., Ltd.
— SBI Property Advisors Co., Ltd. and 3 other entities
Deconsolidations—6 entities were deconsolidated as a result of mergers
— SBI Equal Credit Co., Ltd.
— Partners Investments Co., Ltd.
— SBI Land Design Co., Ltd.
— SBI Tech Co., Ltd. and 2 other entities
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Deconsolidations—1 entity was deconsolidated due to liquidation
— SBI CDI Corporate Incubation
Deconsolidations—2 entities were deconsolidated due to loss of control
— SBI Global Seguros Holdings Limited and 1 other entity
Deconsolidations—3 entities were deconsolidated due to disposal
— SBI AXA Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
— SBI Card Processing Co., Ltd.
— SBI Robo Corp.
Additions—3 entities were reclassified from “Operational investment securities” to non-consolidated subsidiaries and reported as “Investment
securities” due to the application of ASBJ Guidance No. 22 issued on 13 May 2008
(2) Name of major non-consolidated subsidiaries (small size entities):
— SBI ALApromo Co., Ltd.
— SBI VEN CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
— Searchina Co., Ltd.
(3) Name and number of entities not classified as subsidiaries despite the ownership of 50 percent or more of the voting power of the
investees (venture capital investments):
— NARUMIYA INTERNATIONAL Co., Ltd. and 13 other entities.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
(1) Number of consolidated subsidiaries: 112
Name of major consolidated subsidiaries are listed in Section of Corporate Information, “The SBI Group (Principle Group Companies).”
As compared with the year ended 31 March 2010, there were 15 additions to and 6 exclusions from the scope of consolidation.
• Additions—11 entities were newly established or acquired
— SBI Global Investment Co., Ltd.
— SBI - Jefferies Strategic Investments Asia Ltd.
— SBI - Jefferies Asia Fund L.P.
— SBI Ven Holdings Korea Co., Ltd.
— SBI Ven Capital Korea Co., Ltd.
— SBIH UK Limited
—S
 BI Credit Co., Ltd. (G-One Credit Service Co., Ltd. changed its company name to SBI Credit Co., Ltd. on 1 October 2010.) and 4 other
entities
• Additions—4 entities were newly consolidated due to the Group’s ability to exercise control
— SBI ALApromo Co., Ltd.
— SBI VEN CAPITAL PTE. LTD. and 2 other entities
• Deconsolidations—2 entities were deconsolidated as a result of mergers
— E*GOLF Corporation
— SBI Futures Co., Ltd.
• Deconsolidations—3 entities were deconsolidated due to liquidation
— SBI & TH (Beijing) Investment Advisory Co., Ltd.
— SBI Incubation Advisory Co., Ltd. and 1 other entity
• Deconsolidations—1 entity was deconsolidated due to the adoption of the specific exemption for the small size entities.
(2) Name of major non-consolidated subsidiaries (small size entities):
— Searchina Co., Ltd.
— SBI Remit Co., Ltd.
— SBI Phnom Penh Securities Co., Ltd.
(3) N
 ame and number of entities not classified as subsidiaries despite the ownership of 50 percent or more of the voting power of the
investees (venture capital investments):
— NARUMIYA INTERNATIONAL Co., Ltd.
— VSN, Inc. and 11 other entities.
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XXIII. INFORMATION FOR THE SCOPE OF EQUITY METHOD APPLICATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010
(1) Number of non-consolidated subsidiaries subject to equity method: 1
Name of the entity:
— SBI Japannext Co., Ltd.
(2) Number of affiliates accounted for using equity method: 5
Name of major entities:
— SBI Sumishin Net Bank, Ltd.
— SOLXYZ Co., Ltd.
As compared with the year ended 31 March 2009, there were 2 exclusions from the scope of application of equity method, such as Broadmedia
Corporation which was no longer an affiliate due to the decrease in voting power after selling off its stocks.
(3) Names of major non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates that are not accounted for using equity method (small size entities):
— SBI ALApromo Co., Ltd.
— SBI VEN CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
— NEW HORIZON PARTNERS LTD.
(4) Names of entities not classified as affiliates despite the ownership of 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee but below
50 percent (venture capital investments):
— Venture Revitalize Investment, Inc.
— VSN, INC. and 44 other entities
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
(1) Number of non-consolidated subsidiaries subject to equity method: 1
Name of the entity:
— SBI Japannext Co., Ltd.
(2) Number of affiliates accounted for using equity method: 8
Name of major entities:
— SBI Sumishin Net Bank, Ltd.
— SOLXYZ Co., Ltd.
— SBI Investment Korea Co., Ltd. (KOREA TECHNOLOGY INVESTMENT CORPORATION changed its company name to SBI Investment Korea
Co., Ltd. on 29 March 2011.)
As compared with the year ended 31 March 2010, there were 4 additions to and 1 exclusion from the scope of affiliates accounted for using
equity method.
• 4 additions due to the increased influence
— SBI Investment Korea Co., Ltd. and 3 other entities
• 1 exclusion due to the decrease in voting power after selling off its stocks
— Tozai Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(3) Name of major non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates that are not accounted for using equity method (small size entities):
— Searchina Co., Ltd.
— SBI Remit Co.,Ltd.
— NEW HORIZON PARTNERS LTD.
(4) N
 ame of entities not classified as affiliates despite the ownership of 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee but below
50 percent (venture capital investments):
— Venture Revitalize Investment, Inc. and 49 other entities

XXIV. INFORMATION FOR DIFFERENT BALANCE SHEET DATE OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet dates differ from that of reporting entity were as follows:
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 31 December
— SBI Investment Co., Ltd. and 37 other entities
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Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 30 November
— SBI Value Up Fund No. 1 Limited Partnership and 4 other entities
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 30 September
— Softbank Internet Fund and 3 other entities
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 31 August
— SBI BROADBAND CAPITAL Co., Ltd. and 1 entity
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 30 June
— E*GOLF Corporation and 2 other entities
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 31 January
— SBI Mezzanine Fund No. 1 and 6 other entities
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using the financial information of these companies prepared for the purpose of consolidation as
at the balance sheet date of the Group.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet dates differ from that of reporting entity were as follows:
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 31 December
— SBI Investment Co., Ltd. and 46 other entities
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 30 November
— SBI Value Up Fund No. 1 Limited Partnership and 4 other entities
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 30 September
— Softbank Internet Fund and 2 other entities
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 31 August
— SBI BROADBAND CAPITAL Co., Ltd. and 2 other entities
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 30 June
— SBI BROADBAND FUND No. 1 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP and 1 entity
Consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is 31 January
— SBI Mezzanine Fund No. 1 and 5 other entities
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using the financial information of these companies prepared for the purpose of consolidation as
at the balance sheet date of the Group.

XXV. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 25 March 2011, the board of directors of the Company, in preparation for the Company’s listing on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, approved an offering of depository receipts representing the Company’s common shares (the “HDRs”) in Hong Kong and certain other
overseas markets excluding the United States and Canada (the “HDR offering”), the issuance and offering (the “Underlying Share Offering”) of
common shares of the Company to be represented by the HDRs excluding common shares for the over-allotment (the “underlying original shares”),
and the issuance and offering of common shares up to the number of shares (the “underlying shares”) represented by the over-allotment portion of
the HDR offering (the “Over-allotment option”).
The outline of HDR offering and Underlying Share Offering are as stated below. Subsequently on 12 April 2011, the related capital payment of
Underlying Share Offering was completed.

1. Method of offering
The underlying original shares will be issued to Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited through a third-party allocation of 1,750,000 shares.
Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited will then deliver these shares immediately to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (the “Depository Bank”)’s
account which is the depository bank for the HDR offering. The shares will be held by the depositary bank as the underlying assets of the HDR
offering. The issue price (offering price) of the underlying original shares is to be the same as the price to be paid for the shares, which is 10 times the
price to be paid in for HDRs.

2. Class and number of underlying shares offered (Number of HDR offered)
1,750,000 common shares
(17,500,000 HDRs. Investors will receive HDRs in place of the underlying original shares. 1 HDR represents 1/10 of a common share.
Furthermore, accompanied by the HDR offering, depending on the level of demand for the offering, the Company offers an over-allotment of up
to 2,500,000 additional HDRs representing shares borrowed by Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited from the Company’s shareholder through
Daiwa Securities Capital Markets Co. Ltd. In connection with this over-allotment, the Company issues to Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited
up to 250,000 common shares through a third-party allocation.)

3. Issue price
HKD 777.20 per share
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4. Total issue amount
HKD 1,360,100,000 (¥14,815 million)

5. Total issue amount transferred to capital
Capital stock 7,407 millions of yen

6. Purpose
The total amount raised through the Underlying Share Offering and the third-party allocation will go towards direct investment in growing companies
in and out of Japan, funds established with partners in developing countries mainly in Asia and funds in Japan as self investment fund. The rest will
be invested in financial subsidiaries which use the internet as their main channel (and related subsidiaries), as well as provided to overseas financial
institutions in the form of investment and financing (including investment and financing made through subsidiaries.)
Notes: Conversion from Hong Kong dollars to Japanese yen is made at the exchange rate on the payment date.

The outline of the Over-allotment option is as follows:

1. Class and number of shares offered
250,000 common shares

2. Issue price
HKD 777.20 per share

3. Total issue amount
HKD 194,300,000 (¥2,039 million)

4. Total issue amount transferred to capital
Capital stock 1,019 millions of yen

5. Allotee
Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited

6. Purpose
As stated “6. Purpose” in the “Outline of HDR offering and Underlying Share Offering”
Notes: Payment for the Over-allotment option was completed by Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited on 9 may 2011.

XXVI. CONSOLIDATED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

1. Supplementary schedules of bonds
Company name

Description

SBI Holdings,
Inc.

Japanese yen
straight bond
(note 2)

CEM
Corporation
e-Research Inc.

No. 2 straight
bond
No. 13
Unsecured
straight bond
No. 1 Unsecured
straight bond
(Note 3)

SBI Life Living
Co., Ltd.

Total

—

Balance as at
prior year end

Balance as at
current year end

Interest rate

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(%)

April 2009 to
January 2011

110,000

70,000

1.84–1.96

10 July 2007

300

(70,000)
—

1.7

Secured

31 March 2010

2,300

—

2.3

None

30 September
2010

30 December
2010

—

600

TIBOR

Bank guarantee

30 December
2020

—

112,600

(60)
70,600
(70,060)

Issuance date

Collateral

None

+0.1
— —

Redemption date

April 2010 to
January 2012

9 July 2010

—

Notes:
(1) Amounts in brackets represent redemption amounts within one year from balance sheet date.
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(2) Total amounts of straight bond in Japanese Yen issued based on Euro medium term note program are stated above.
(3) Collateral is provided for the bank guarantee.
(4) Annual maturities of long-term loans payable as at 31 March 2011 for the next five years are as follows:
Within one year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

70,060

60

60

60

60

2. Supplementary schedules of loans and others
Description

Short-term loans payable
Current portion of long-term loans payable
Current portion of lease obligation
Long-term loans payable
(excluding current-portion)
Lease obligation
(excluding current-portion)
Other interest bearing debt
Borrowings on margin transactions
Total

Balance as at prior
year end

Balance as at current
year end

Average interest rate

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(%)

55,614
13,368
2,405

97,164
12,147
2,114

1.30
1.37
—

27,620

31,366

1.46

8,324

6,506

—

48,813
156,145

70,386
219,685

0.77
—

Repayment date

—
—
—
March 2012 to
January 2033
March 2013 to
April 2016
—

Notes:
(1) Average interest rates were calculated using the weighted-average interest rate based on year-end borrowing balances.
(2) Average interest rate on lease obligation are not stated since the part of lease obligation on balance sheet includes interest portion of minimum
lease payments.
(3) Annual maturities of long-term borrowings and lease obligation, excluding current-portion, as at 31 March 2011 for the next five years are as
follows:
1 to 2 years

Long-term borrowings
Lease obligation
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2 to 3 years

3 to 4 years

4 to 5 years

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

(millions of Yen)

18,315
2,007

4,918
1,991

1,065
1,634

6,700
868

